
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 
September 23, 2019 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation – Steve Dedmon; Vestavia Hills Chaplain

4. Pledge Of Allegiance

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition

6. Proclamation – Blood Cancer Awareness Month – September 2019

7. Proclamation – International Trigeminal Neuralgia Awareness Day – October 7, 2019

8. Proclamation – Fire Safety Week – October 6-12, 2019 & Fire Prevention Month – October 
2019

9. City Manager’s Report

10. Councilors’ Reports

11. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner III, Finance Director

12. Approval Of Minutes – August 19, 2019 (Work Session), September 4, 2019 (Work 
Session) and September 9, 2019 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

13. Ordinance Number 2869 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – Acreage Adjacent To Former

Gresham School (Vestavia Hills Elementary Dolly Ridge); Vestavia Hills Board Of

Education, Owner(s)    (public hearing)

New Business 

14. Resolution Number 5188 – Alcohol License – SAZA, Inc., d/b/a Cahaba Heights Texaco 
For The Off-Premise Sale Of 050–Retail Beer and 070-Retail Table Wine; Sonia Noorallah 
Charania, Executive  (public hearing)

15. Resolution Number 5189 – A Resolution Approving Financing Terms For City Vehicles 
And/Or Equipment Through BB&T Bank

16. Ordinance Number 2876 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Take All Actions Necessary To Secure Leasing And Maintenance Of Select Vehicles 
For The City

17. Ordinance Number 2877 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Sidewalks Along CR-42 (Massey 



Road) From SR-3 (US-31 Montgomery Highway) To CR-99 (Columbiana Road) In The 

City; Project CMAQ-7030(600) 

18. Ordinance Number 2878 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Sidewalks Along CR-42 (Massey 

Road) From SR-3 (US-31 Montgomery Highway) To CR-99 (Columbiana Road) In The 

City; Project CMAQ-7030(600); CPMS Ref#100057173 And 100057174 

19. Ordinance Number 2879 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Proposed Project Number DE-

HPP-TAPBH-A124( ) Pedestrian Walkway Over US-31 In Vestavia Hills Near Wald Park, 

Jefferson County 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

20. Ordinance Number 2872 – An Ordinance For Conditional Use Approval For New Cingular 

Wireless PCS, LLC For Erection Of A 125’ Stealth Cellular Tower To Replace A Light 

Pole At The Soccer Fields Of The Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex; Property is Zoned 

Institutional And Is Owned By The City Of Vestavia Hills   (public hearing) 

21. Ordinance Number 2873 – Rezoning – 2647 Gresham Drive; Acreage Adjacent To The 

Former Gresham School, Now Vestavia Hills Dolly Ridge Elementary; Rezone From 

Jefferson County E-1 (Estate Residential) To Vestavia Hills Institutional (Institutional); 

City Of Vestavia Hills Board Of Education, Owner    (public hearing) 

22. Ordinance Number 2874 – Rezoning Amendment – Lot 1A, Resurvey Of Lots 1 & 3; 

Amending Ordinance Number 2110 Conditions To Allow Construction Of A Two-Story 

Commercial Building And Exclude Requirement For Shared Parking With Lot 3A; Clint 

Gentry, Owner   (public hearing) 

23. Ordinance Number 2875 – Rezoning – 2961 Green Valley Road; Rezone From Vestavia 

Hills R-5 (Multi-Family) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential District); Magnum 

Properties, Owner(s)   (public hearing) 

24. Citizen Comments      

25. Motion For Adjournment 



 
WHEREAS, an estimated 1,399,180 people in the United States are either living with, or are in 

remission from, leukemia, lymphoma or myeloma; and 
 
WHEREAS, an estimated 176,200 people in the United States are expected to be diagnosed 

with a blood cancer in 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, Leukemia, lymphoma and myeloma are expected to cause the deaths of an 

estimated 56,770 people in the United States in 2019; and   
 
WHEREAS the Leukemia & Lymphoma Society (LLS) exists to find cures and ensure access 

to treatments for blood cancer patients; and  
 
WHEREAS  LLS maintains an office in Birmingham to help improve the quality of life for 

blood cancer patients and their families in the City of Vestavia Hills; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills is similarly committed to the eradication of these 

diseases and supports the treatment of blood cancer patients and their families; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills encourages private efforts to enhance research funding 

and education programs that are saving lives.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim September 
2019 as  

 
     BLOOD CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 

 
throughout our community to educate about the need for finding cures and 
creating access to treatments for all types of blood cancers, and I urge all citizens 
of Vestavia Hills to get involved with LLS by volunteering or donating to fund 
lifesaving research. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 19th day of September 2019. 
 

 
 
__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 
 



WHEREAS, Trigeminal neuralgia (TN) is a painful disorder of the portion of the fifth cranial 
nerve that supplies sensation to the face; and 

 
WHEREAS, TN is characterized by recurrent electric shock-like pains in one or more branches 

of the trigeminal nerve; and  
 
WHEREAS, the severe facial pain can last from a few seconds to 15 minutes or longer and 

some individuals have up to 100 bursts of stabbing pain in a day which results in a 
deterioration of their quality of life; and   

 
WHEREAS TN is usually a long-term condition with approximately 14,000 people in the 

United States developing TN each year; and  
 
WHEREAS  creating awareness of TN will grant access to resources and create opportunities 

for funding, research and treatment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills will participate in the “Light Up Teal” promotion by 

illuminating the southern gateway of Vestavia Hills on October 7th in support of 
creating awareness about TN. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim October 7, 
2019 as  

 
     TRIGEMINAL NEURALGIA AWARENESS DAY 

 
throughout our community and I urge all citizens of Vestavia Hills to learn more 
about TN and its diagnosis and treatment. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 19th day of September 2019. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is committed to ensuring the safety and 
security of all those living in and visiting Vestavia Hills; and 

 
WHEREAS, fighting fires is one of the most hazardous professions, requiring physical 

strength, stamina, extensive training, courage, and selfless concern for the welfare 
of our residents; and  

 
WHEREAS, the first responders of Vestavia Hills are dedicated to reducing the occurrence of 

home fires and home fire injuries through prevention and protection education; 
and   

 
WHEREAS the majority of US fire deaths occur at home each year and residents who have 

planned and practiced a home fire escape plan are more prepared and will 
therefore be more likely to survive a fire; and  

 
WHEREAS  residents who are responsive to public education measures and are able to take 

action increase their safety from fire, especially in their homes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2019 Fire Prevention Week theme, “Not Every Hero Wears a Cape. Plan and 

Practice Your Escape!” serves to remind the public to take personal steps to 
increase our safety from fire. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim October 6-12, 
2019 as Fire Prevention Week and October 2019 as  

 
     FIRE PREVENTION MONTH 

 
throughout our community and I urge all citizens of Vestavia Hills to participate 
in fire safety activities. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 19th day of September 2019. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 
 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

AUGUST 19, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular scheduled work session on this 
day in the Executive Conference Room at 6:00 PM, following posting/publication as 
required by Alabama law.  The City Clerk checked the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
      Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul J. Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney* 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 

Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 

       *arrived at 6:19 PM 
 
 The Mayor called the work session to order.   
 
 

UPDATE ON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that the Chamber is beginning a strategic plan utilizing a 
consultant.  He stated that the goal will be to determine where they wish to me in five years 
and how to navigate to that point.  Meetings will be held here at City Hall on October 23, 
2019 from 10 to 3 PM and November 6, 4:30 to 6 PM. 
 
 

UPDATE ON SMALL CELL TECHNOLOGY 
 
 Mr. Downes gave a brief background on the small cell technology coming to the 
City and the Ordinances that were enacted to regulate it.  He compared the differences 
between macro-sites and micro-sites.  He explained that new poles that would be required 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 2 

 

with any micro site would require notification and it was decided to do this notification in 
the way of door hangers to residences within the adjacent area. 
 
 Discussion ensued relative to the proposed legislation that was attempted in the last 
legislative session and continued negotiations with AT&T.  Mr. Downs explained an 
upcoming rate adjustment that’ll be presented to the Council soon and the effects the 
Ordinance would have on projected revenues. 
 
 

PROPOSED FY2020 BUDGETS 
 
 Mr. Downes showed a summary sheet for the FY2020 budgets and announced that 
there’d be a half day work session with the Council.  Following discussion, the Council 
designated September 4 for a special work session beginning at 2 PM in order to discuss 
the budget at length and meet with department heads. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor announced that the Council needed to go into Executive Session to 
discuss matters of commerce for an estimated 30 minutes with no business to be discussed 
following the Executive Session.  He opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to move into Executive Session to discuss matters of commerce for 

an estimated 30 minutes was made by the Mayor and second was by Mr. 
Weaver.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 
 
 The audience left the Executive Conference Room and the Council entered into 
Executive Session at 6:32 PM.  At 7:10 PM, the Council exited Executive Session and the 
Mayor called the work session back to order. 
 
 
 There being no further business, the work session adjourned at 7:11 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 3 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES 

WORK SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2019 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular scheduled work session on this 
day in the Executive Conference Room at 2:00 PM, following posting/publication as 
required by Alabama law.  The City Clerk checked the roll with the following: 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
Paul J. Head, Councilor 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce, Councilor 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Jeff Downes, City Manager  
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Shawn Jackson, Dep. Fire Chief 
Scott Key, Dep. Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
Daniel Tackett, Library 
Umang Patel, Court Director 
Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Keith Blanton, Building Official 
Darrin Estes, IT Director 

The Mayor called the work session to order.   

Mr. Downes indicated that Mr. Pierce is out of the state on vacation and Mr. Weaver 
is sick.   He stated that Mr. Weaver has previously discussed the propose budget and feels 
he understands what’s being proposed. 

Mr. Downes gave an overview of the proposed budgets.  He indicated that the cost 
of healthcare was proposed at 2% but was actually increased by over 4%. He stated that he 
found ways in the budget to absorb this cost so it would not be passed on to employees. 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 2 

He explained that by delaying the hiring of some new personnel in Public services they 
were able to cover this expense.  He then showed the effects of a COLA and explained his 
reasoning for requesting a 1% COLA beginning October 1.  He stated this along with the 
increased absorption of the insurance costs falls in line with inflation rates. 

Presentations from the various department heads outlined current and projected 
future expectations and needs.  Each presentation was discussed at length by the City 
Council. 

In closing, Mr. Downes indicated that he has a listing of capital items to be 
purchased from the FY2019 surplus that’ll be presented at the next meeting to offload this 
FY2020 budget.  Also, that the City needs to continue looking at ways of financing future 
capital needs. 

Mr. Downes stated that the figures will be amended to cover the health care costs 
and reflect certain projected incomes.  He also indicated that the Council needed to give 
financial commitment to a pumper/ladder truck that will not be expensed until FY2021 
because the truck has to be ordered approximately a year before it is expensed in the budget. 

There being no further business, the work session adjourned at 4:15 PM. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 1 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the Deputized City Clerk called the roll with the following: 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
Paul Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
Conrad Garrison, City Planner/Dep. Clerk 
Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Shawn Jackson, Deputy Fire Chief 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 

Sam Williamson; Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  

 Mrs. Cook stated that she attended the ribbon cutting at the opening of the new 4th and 5th

grade centers of the new Vestavia Hills Dolly Ridge Elementary School.
 Mrs. Cook announced that on Wednesday, September 11, 2019 beginning at noon here at

City Hall, the PTO will present a parent awareness meeting on teen culture.  Speaker is
Rachel Lawley from Bradford Heath Services.

 Mrs. Cook announced that the City’s shredding and recycling day will be held on
September 14, 2019 from 9 to 1 PM here at City Hall.

 Mrs. Cook reminded everyone that the annual tri-city Patriot Day celebration will be held
at Homewood City Hall on September 11, 2019 beginning at 7:30 AM.

 Mrs. Cook stated that she will participate in a tour the Birmingham Recycling and
Recovery Center and have the opportunity to observe how recyclables are processed.



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 2 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Scott Perry and Taylor Burton who were attending the meeting
representing the Chamber of Commerce Board.

 Mr. Weaver welcomed some visiting high school students.
 Mr. Head announced the regularly scheduled Park and Recreation Board meeting to be

held on September 17, 2019 beginning at 7:30 AM in the Executive Conference Room
here at City Hall.

PROCLAMATION 

The Mayor presented a proclamation designating September 9, 2019 as “Polycystic Ovary 
Syndrome Awareness Month.”  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation and the Mayor presented it to 
Sharmene Smith. 

Ms. Smith thanked the Mayor and Council for the recognition and support. 

PROCLAMATION 

The Mayor presented a proclamation designating September 17-23, 2019 as “Constitution 
Week.”  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation and the Mayor presented it to representatives from 
various Chapters of the the Daughters of the America Revolution:  Cindi Akins and Halcyann 
Badham, Cahawba Chapter; Ellen Tucker, General Sumter Chapter; and Suzy Koski, Lily of the 
Cahaba Chapter. 

PROCLAMATION 

The Mayor presented a proclamation designating September 2019 as “Gynecologic 
Cancer Awareness Month.”  Mr. Downes read the Proclamation and the Mayor presented it to 
Sheila McKenna along with Bella and Will Bourland, who were accepting on behalf of their 
mother, Ginny Bourland who passed away from ovarian cancer. 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 Mr. Downes stated that there is progress being made in the Massey Road project in that
ALDOT has finally sent a funding agreement to allow the city to begin to acquire ROW
and also relocate utilities in advance of the upcoming ALDOT project.

 Mr. Downes stated that ALDOT has given preliminary approval to the design of the
pedestrian bridge, however, they also want formal Council approval.  So this approval
should be coming to the Council soon.  Following that approval, hopefully the
construction designs will then be approved by ALDOT.

 Mr. Downes stated that the City operates street resurfacing under a 3-year bid process.
New bids are out right now and will open next week.  A new contract will carry the City
into the next 3 years.



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 3 

 EDG has presented plans for sidewalks on East Street and if they meet engineering review,
they’ll be moving into a bid process soon.  He stated that they are also looking at a way
to expedite the components of Dolly Ridge/Rocky Ridge sidewalks.  Mrs. Cook reminded
everyone that the residents of that area had suggestions to help alleviate the problems
caused by the Mountain Brook soccer fields down the road and these sidewalks were one
of the suggestions.

COUNCILOR REPORTS 

 Mr. Pierce state that he will be attending the Chamber of Commerce luncheon meeting
tomorrow, September 10 at the Vestavia Country Club.

 The Mayor stated that Freedom from Addiction Coalition Awareness Breakfast with a
topic of “Vaping” to be held at Canterbury United Methodist Church on September 20,
2019 beginning at 7:30 AM.

 The Mayor announced that he will be guest speaker at Harvest of Hope Lunch which will
be held at The Club tomorrow.  He stated that this is a fundraiser for Oak Mountain
Missions.

 Mr. Weaver announced that the regular Planning and Zoning Commission meeting willb
held Thursday at 6 PM in the Council Chambers.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The minutes of the following meeting were presented for approval:  August 26, 2019 
(Regular Meeting). 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the August 26, 2019 
(Regular Meeting); and approve them as presented was by Mrs. Cook and second 
by Mr. Weaver.   Roll call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – abstain  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

OLD BUSINESS  

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2865 

Ordinance Number 2865 – Rezoning – 601 Vestavia Parkway; Lot 3, Koger Executive 
Center; Rezone From Jefferson County C-P To Vestavia Hills O-2 With A 
Maximum Height Of 3-Stories; Compatible Zoning For A Past Annexation; 
Barbour Building, LLC, Owners   (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 4 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2865 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.   

Mr. Weaver stated that this request was heard by the Commission on August 8. It was 
rezoned in County but was never compatibly zoned in the City.  Staff recommended rezoning to 
City classification of O-2 with maximum height of 3 stories. 

Charles Grieir, representing Barber Building, LLC, owner of the property, was present in 
regard to this request.  He stated that there are plans to renovate the building. 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   

Mikhail Neklyudov, 2409 Taralane Circle, stated that they have concerns about the 
rezoning of this property since the zoning code allows up to 10-stories.   

The Mayor stated that the building is existing and there are no plans to change it. 

Mr. Neklyudov stated that the building can be rebuilt up to 10-stories. 

Mr. Weaver stated that the ordinance presented limits the height to three stories.  He 
explained that condition will be attached to any approval. 

Discussion ensued relative to the zoning ordinance and the procedure to build larger than 
3 stories. 

Ms. Leavings explained that the property is now zoned Jefferson County CP, meaning 
they now have the ability to build a larger building.  The request is for a compatible City zoning 
classification.  The adoption of this ordinance will limited the building to 3-stories.   

Dave Melton, 3031 Taralane Drive, stated that they were referencing Ordinance 2331, the 
Zoning Code to allow 10-stories, but this particular Ordinance limits the stories to 3.  

The Mayor stated that is correct. 

There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2867 

Ordinance Number 2867 – An Ordinance Approving The Final 10% Of The FY2019 
Budgets For The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And Authorizing The City 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 5 

Manager To Purchase Certain Capital Purchase From The FY2019 General 
Fund   (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2867 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 
Cook.   

Mr. Downes stated that the State of Alabama requires that the council adopt the final 10% 
of the fiscal year budget at the end of the year.  This Ordinance approves the final 10% and also 
allows certain expenditures to offset the FY2020 budget. 

Mrs. Cook stated that the Council met with the City Manager and Department Heads in 
work session on September 4, 2019 in order to discuss at length their needs and the proposed 
budget. 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2868 

Ordinance Number 2868 - An Ordinance Approving FY2020 Budgets For The City Of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama   (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2868 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.   

Mr. Downes stated that following the budget work session, the final draft of the budget 
has been presented to the Council and thoroughly reviewed.  He highlighted the changes from the 
original draft. 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 6 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5180 

Resolution Number 5180 - A Resolution Approving A One Percent (1%) Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA) For Employees Beginning October 1, 2019   (public 
hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5180 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.   

Mr. Downes stated that while the inflation rate was reviewed as the budget was prepared.  
He stated that they had to review the rising cost of healthcare and that the change in the insurance 
coverage was more than 4% which the City covered.  When you add that into this 1% COLA, Mr. 
Downes stated that he believes that helped to keep up with the market. 

Mr. Pierce reminded that most employees are also allowed merit increases. 

Mr. Downes stated that about half of the employees are topped out and are senior 
employees. 

Mr. Weaver stated that he did have concerns about the COLA.  He stated that over the 
years, you can see that the City is competitive with surrounding municipalities.  He stated that the 
employees are appreciated and he feels that the City is competitive. 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5181 

Resolution Number 5181 - A Resolution Vacating A Drainage Easement On Lot 23, 
Southbend Subdivision; Taylor Burton Co., Inc., Owner    (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5181 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.   

The Mayor stated that the public hearing will be this Resolution along with Resolution 
Number 5182. 

Taylor Burton, explained the need to redesign the drainage easement from a higher lot. 
He stated that with the size of the homes being built, the relocation of the easement was necessary. 
The lots were redesigned and approved by the City Engineer. 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 7 

Mr. Brady concurred on both easements. 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing on both Resolution Numbers 5181 and 
5182.  There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5182 

Resolution Number 5182 - A Resolution Vacating A Drainage Easement On Lot 31, 
Southbend Subdivision; Taylor Burton Co., Inc., Owner   (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5182 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.   

There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

NEW BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5186 

Resolution Number 5186 - Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver An 
Easement Agreement With Jefferson County Environmental Department 
For Improvements At Wald Park 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5186 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mrs. 
Cook.   

Mr. Downes stated that this is a sanitary sewer easement for the improvements at Wald 
Park granted to Jefferson County Environmental. 

There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 8 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5187 

Resolution Number 5187 – Alcohol License – Baumhowers Vestavia LLC D/B/A 
Baumhowers Victory Grille For The On-Premise Sale Of 020-Restaurant 
Retail Liquor; Robert G. Baumhower, Executive  (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5187 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.   

Craig Parker, Area Director for Baumhowers in North Alabama, was present in regard to 
this request.   

Mayor asked about the projected opening date. 

Mr. Parker stated they estimate opening in 3 to 4 weeks. 

Mr. Pierce asked about training of employees. 

Mr. Parker stated they are a part of the responsible vendor program with ABC which is 
monitored by their HR department.  The certifications are monitored on a continuing basis. 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 
the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2870 

Ordinance Number 2870 - Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With NCIC Inmate Communications For An Inmate 
Telephone System 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2870 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.   

Captain Evans explained that this communication system allows inmate communication 
through a regulated system.  He stated the system now is a standard phone which stay torn up 
because of rough treatment.  This also allows video communication for off-site attorneys and 
would allow the court magistrates to do bond hearings without having to personally go to the jail. 
This system will also regulate charges for long-distance and allow monitoring of the phone 
system.  This system has no cost to the city and allows a safer environment for everyone, 
prisoners, employees and the public.  He stated that the Council was given an amended agreement 
just prior to the meeting due to revisions suggested by the City Attorney which would require a 
motion to substitute this agreement for the original in the packet. 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 9 

MOTION Motion to amend Ordinance Number 2870 in order to amend the included 
agreement as revised by Mr. Boone was by Mr. Weaver and second was by Mrs. 
Cook.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 

The Mayor stated that the following Ordinance Number 2871 requires unanimous consent 
for immediate consideration and action.  He opened the floor for a motion. 

MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action of 
Ordinance Number 2871 was by Mrs. Cook and second was by Mr. Weaver.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2871 

Ordinance Number 2871 – An Ordinance For Financial Commitment Of The City Council 
For The Purchase Of A Fire Department Ladder/Pumper Truck To Be 
Expensed In The FY2021 City Of Vestavia Hills Budget   (public hearing) 

Mr. Downes explained that timing requires forward financial commitment because it must 
be ordered months before it is expensed.  Since the expense of this truck will not be shown until 
FY2021, the Council’s commitment is required now. 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2871 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 
Pierce.   

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   

David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked the cost of a ladder/pumper truck. 

Mr. Downes stated that one would cost $1,150,000 if ordered today. 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 10 

There being no one to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mrs. Cook – yes  Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes Motion carried. 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

The Mayor Pro-Tem announced that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on September 9, 2019, at 6:00 
PM. 

1. Ordinance Number 2869 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – Acreage Adjacent To Former
Gresham School (Vestavia Hills Elementary Dolly Ridge); Vestavia Hills Board Of
Education, Owner(S)    (public hearing)

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, asked if the City will make any money off of 
the new proposed inmate phone system. 

The Mayor stated that the cost benefit would be savings to the City along with the safety 
of prisoners and employees. 

Mr. Harwell stated that a normal recycling day leaves a lot of trash that’s left on the street 
because the employees are not monitoring the spillage. 

Mrs. Cook stated that recyclables cannot be bagged because the center will not be accepted 
and the City is charged with contaminated materials. 

At 6:58 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:59 PM. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
September 9, 2019 

Page 11 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2869 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2869 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 10th day of June, 2019, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

Acreage Adjacent to the former Gresham School 
City of Vestavia Hills Board of Education, Owner(s) 

A parcel of land lying in the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 
28, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being 
more particularly described as follows: 

BEGIN at a 2" capped rebar found and locally accepted to be the Southwest 
corner of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 28, said 
point also being a point on the East right of way margin of Gresham Drive 
(50’ right of way); thence run in a Northerly direction along the West line 
of said 1/4-1/4 section and along said East right of way for a distance of 
365.04 feet to a 1/2" rebar found; thence turn right 92 degrees 05 minutes 
00 seconds, leaving the West line of said 1/4-1/4 section and said right of 
way, and run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 238.70 feet to an iron 
pin set; thence turn right 87 degrees 55 minutes 09 seconds and run in a 
southerly direction for a distance of 365.46 feet to an iron pin set on the 
South line of said 1/4-1/4 section; thence run in a Westerly direction along 
said South line for a distance of 238.70 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
Containing 2.00 acres, more or less. 



Ordinance Number 2869 
Page 2 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 2019. 

Rusty Weaver 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2869 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 23rd day of September, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2869 
Page 3 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2869



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2869



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2869



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2869



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2869



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2869



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2869



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5188 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 
FOR SAZA INC., D/B/A CAHABA HEIGHTS 
TEXACO; SONIA NOORALLAH CHARANIA, 
EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for SAZA Inc., d/b/a Cahaba Heights Texaco, located at 3101 Cahaba 

Heights Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the off-premise sale of 050-Retail Beer and 

070-Retail Table Wine; Sonia Noorallah Charania, executive.

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23rd day of September, 2019. 

Rusty Weaver 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5188



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5188



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5188



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5188



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5188



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5189 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FINANCING TERMS FOR CITY 
VEHICLES AND/OR EQUIPMENT THROUGH BB&T BANK 

WHEREAS, The City of Vestavia Hills (“Governmental Entity”) has previously 

determined to undertake a project for the purchase of various vehicles & equipment (the “Project”) 

and the Officer of the Governmental Entity responsible for financial affairs of the Governmental 

Entity (the “Finance Officer”) has now presented a proposal for the financing of such Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Governmental Entity hereby determines to finance the Project through BB&T Bank

(“BB&T”), in accordance with the proposals obtained by the Finance Officer as detailed

in Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5189 as though

written fully therein; and

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the

“Financing Documents”) shall be consistent with the foregoing terms.  All officers and

employees of the Governmental Entity are hereby authorized and directed to execute and

deliver any Financing Documents, and to take all such further action as they may consider

necessary or desirable to carry out the financing of the Project as contemplated by the

proposal and this resolution.  The Financing Documents shall include a Financing

Agreement and a Project Fund Agreement as Regions may request.

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the

Financing Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents

have been completed to such officer’s satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to

approve changes to any Financing Documents previously signed by Governmental Entity

officers or employees, provided that such changes shall not substantially alter the intent of

such documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms executed by such

officers. The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance Officer shall

approve, with the Finance Officer’s release of any Financing Document for delivery

constituting conclusive evidence of such officer’s final approval of the document’s final

form.



4. The Governmental Entity shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission 

of which shall cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross 

income for federal income tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment 

obligations under the Financing Documents. The Governmental Entity hereby designates 

its obligations to make principal and interest payments under the Financing Documents as 

“qualified tax-exempt obligations” for the purpose of Internal Revenue Code Section 

265(b)(3).

5. The Governmental Entity intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration 

of the Governmental Entity’s official intent to reimburse expenditures for the Project that 

is to be financed from the proceeds of the BB&T financing described above. The 

Governmental Entity intends that funds that have been advanced, or that may be advanced, 

from the Governmental Entity’s general fund, or any other Governmental Entity fund 

related to the Project, for Project costs may be reimbursed from the financing proceeds.

6. The officers of the Governmental Entity and any person or persons designated and 

authorized by any officer of the Governmental Entity to act in the name and on behalf of 

the Governmental Entity, or any one or more of them, are authorized to do and perform or 

cause to be done and performed in the name and on behalf of the Governmental Entity such 

other acts, to pay or cause to be paid on behalf of the Governmental Entity such related 

costs and expenses, and to execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered in the 

name and on behalf of the Governmental Entity such other notices, requests, demands, 

directions, consents, approvals, orders, applications, certificates, agreements, further 

assurances, or other instruments or communications, under the corporate seal of the 

Governmental Entity, or otherwise, as they or any of them may deem necessary, advisable, 

or appropriate in order to (a) complete the plan of financing contemplated by the Financing 

Documents, (b) carry into effect the intent of the provisions of this resolution and the 

Financing Documents, and (c) demonstrate the validity of the Financing Documents, the 

absence of any pending or threatened litigation with respect to the Financing Documents 

and the plan of financing contemplated by the Financing Documents, and the exemption of 

interest on the interest payment obligations under the Financing Documents from federal 

and State of Alabama income taxation. 



7. All prior actions of Governmental Entity officers in furtherance of the purposes of this 

resolution are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. All other resolutions (or parts 

thereof) in conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict. 

This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Rusty Weaver 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
SEAL 
 
 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
VEHICLES and HEAVY EQUIPMENT
"LEASE/PURCHASE PROPOSALS"

FISCAL 2019-2020

BkProposal-Quotes-Leases2020

Bank No. 1 2 3 4 5
Description Loan Amount Terms BB&T Bank Center Bank (FKA NBC) IBERIA Bank Regions Bank Renasant Bank

Vehicles $453,000 Rates - 3 yrs 1.97% 2.61% 2.69% 1.98% 3.050%
Heavy Vehicles & Equipment $120,000 Rates - 7 yrs 2.07% 2.68% 2.67% 2.08% 3.097%

Heavy Equipment $1,150,000 Rates - 7 yrs 2.07% 2.68% no bid 2.10% 3.097%
TOTAL LEASE/LOAN AMOUNT $1,723,000

Combined Percentage Total 6.11% 7.97% 6.16% 9.24%
Rankings 1 6 n/a 2

Bank No. 6 7 8
Description Loan Amount Terms Signature Public Funding SunTrust Leasing Trustmark National Bk BUDGET

Vehicles $453,000 Rates - 3 yrs 2.35% 2.184% 2.43% 2.82%
Heavy/Commercial Vehicles $120,000 Rates - 7 yrs 2.61% 2.242% 2.59% 3.03%

Heavy Equipment $1,150,000 Rates - 7 yrs 2.61% 2.276% 2.59% 3.03%
TOTAL LEASE/LOAN AMOUNT $1,723,000

Combined Percentage Total 7.57% 6.702% 7.61% 8.88%
Rankings 4 3 5

Financial Institutions/Banks 
Didn't  Submit Proposals:

9 BBVA BB&T Bank 1 6.11%
10 Hancock Bank Regions Bank 2 6.16%
11 Southlake Capital SunTrust Leasing 3 6.70%
12 SouthPoint Bank Signature Public Funding 4 7.57%
13 The Bancorp Bank Trustmark National Bk 5 7.61%

Center Bank (FKA NBC) 6 7.97%
Renasant Bank 7 9.24%

FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020

Note: The Ladder Truck requires a minimum of 12 months to build/construct; as such, the 2019-2020 proposed budget is only noting the upcoming purchase and is not financially impacted.
The expense of the Ladder truck will be budgeted in the 2020-2021 Proposed Budget.

PROPOSALS
RATE RANKINGS

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5189



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2876 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENTS WITH ENTERPRISE 
FLEET MANAGEMENT FOR LEASING AND MAINTENANCE OF 
CERTAIN VEHICLES FOR THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver agreements 

with Enterprise Fleet Management for the leasing and maintenance of certain City vehicles; 

and 

2. Copies of said agreements are marked as Exhibit A and affixed to and incorporated into 

this Ordinance Number 2876 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Ordinance Number shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval 

and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Rusty Weaver 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2876



Ordinance Number 2877 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2877 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALDOT FOR 
SIDEWALKS ALONG CR-42 (MASSEY ROAD) FROM SR-3 (US-31 
MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY) TO CR-99 (COLUMBIANA ROAD) IN THE 
CITY; PROJECT CMAQ-7030(600) 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the City enter into an agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and through the 

Alabama Department of Transportation relating to a project for:  

Sidewalks along CR-42 (Massey Road) from SR-3 (US-31 Montgomery 
Highway) to CR-99 (Columbiana Road) in the City of Vestavia Hills; Project# 
CMAQ-7030(600); CPMS Ref# 100057172.  

Which agreement is before this Council, and that the agreement be executed in the name 

of the City, by the Mayor and City Manager for and on its behalf and that it be attested by the City 

Clerk and the official seal of the City be affixed thereto.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 

agreement by all parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City.   

ADOPTED and APPROVED, this the 23rd day of September, 2019.

Rusty Weaver 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2877 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION: 
 
I, the undersigned qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of an Ordinance lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 23rd day of 
September, 2019, and that such Ordinance is on file in the City Clerk's Office. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 

the City on this ___________ day of _______________________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
     Rebecca Leavings 
     City Clerk     SEAL 

 





Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

by those officers, officials and persons duly authorized to execute same, and the Agreement 
is deemed to be dated and to be effective on the date hereinafter stated as the date of its 
approval by the Governor of Alabama. 

ATTEST: 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

By:------------

City Clerk (Signature) 

By: 

As Mayor (Signature)/City Manager 

(AFFIX SEAL) 

Type Name of Clerk Type Name of Mayor / City Manager

This agreement has been legally reviewed and approved as to form and content. 

By: 

William F. Patty, 

Chief Counsel 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

DeJarvis Leonard, P.E. D.E. (Ed) Phillips, I>.E.

East Central Region Engineer State Local Transportation Engineer 

Don T. Arkle, P. E. 

Chief Engineer 

STATE OF ALABAMA, ACTING BY AND THROUGH 

THE ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

John R. Cooper, Transportation Director 

THE WITHIN AND FOREGOING AGREEMENT IS HEREBY EXECUTED AND 
SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR ON THIS __ DAY OF _____ _, 20 __ 

KAYIVEY 

GOVERNOR, STATE OF ALABAMA 

7 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2877



Ordinance Number 2878 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2878 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALDOT FOR 
SIDEWALKS ALONG CR-42 (MASSEY ROAD) FROM SR-3 (US-31 
MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY) TO CR-99 (COLUMBIANA ROAD) IN THE 
CITY; PROJECT CMAQ-7030(600); CPMS Ref#100057173 AND 100057174 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

That the City enter into an agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and through the 

Alabama Department of Transportation relating to a project for:  

Sidewalks along CR-42 (Massey Road) from SR-3 (US-31 Montgomery 
Highway) to CR-99 (Columbiana Road) in the City of Vestavia Hills; Project# 
CMAQ-7030(600); CPMS Ref# 100057173 and 100057174.  

Which agreement is before this Council, and that the agreement be executed in the name 

of the City, by the Mayor and City Manager for and on its behalf and that it be attested by the City 

Clerk and the official seal of the City be affixed thereto.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 

agreement by all parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City.   

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 2019.

Rusty Weaver 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2878 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION: 
 
I, the undersigned qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of an Ordinance lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 23rd day of 
September, 2019, and that such Ordinance is on file in the City Clerk's Office. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 

the City on this ___________ day of _______________________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
     Rebecca Leavings 
     City Clerk     SEAL 

 





Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2878



Ordinance Number 2879 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2879 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALDOT FOR 
PROPOSED PROJECT NUMBER DE-HPP-TAPBH-A124( ) PEDESTRIAN 
WALKWAY OVER US-31 IN VESTAVIA HILLS NEAR WALD PARK, 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills Alabama (hereinafter at times referred to as City) 

is desirous of having certain improvements made on SR-3(US-31) within the City Limits of 

Vestavia Hills, in accordance with plans prepared by the Alabama Department of Transportation 

and designated as Project Number: DE-HPP-TAPBH-A124() Pedestrian Walkway over US-31 in 

Vestavia Hills near Wald Park; and  

WHEREAS, The Alabama Department of Transportation is now or may later be desirous 

of receiving Federal Aid for improvement of said highway; and  

WHEREAS, The Federal Highway Administration, an agency of the United States of 

America, will not participate in any funding for the construction of said project until and unless 

the City will agree to certain requirements of the Federal Highway Administration. The City for 

the purpose of complying with requirements of the Federal Highway Administration in regard to 

its funding of improvements of the type and kind in this agreement provided for, does hereby pass 

and adopt the following resolution:  

BE IT ORDAINED BY MAYOR AND CITY THE COUNCIL OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, that the plans of said project including alignment, profile, grades, typical 

sections and paving layouts as submitted to this City and which are now on file in the office of the 

City Clerk are hereby approved and that the location of said project as staked out by the Alabama 

Department of Transportation and as shown by said plans referred to are hereby approved and the 

Alabama Department of Transportation, in cooperation with the Federal Highway Administration, 

is hereby authorized to proceed with the grading, draining, paving, and otherwise improving and 

construction of said project in accordance with said plans.  

The City by and through its Council hereby grants to the Alabama Department of 

Transportation the full use of and access to the dedicated widths of any existing streets for the 

construction of said project and hereby agrees to permit and allow the Alabama Department of 

Transportation to close and barricade the said project and intersecting streets for as long as 

necessary while the said project is being graded, drained, paved, and otherwise improved, and 



Ordinance Number 2879 
Page 2 

hereby agrees that the use of any street or highway for parking within an interchange area will not 

at any time be permitted.  

The City hereby further agrees to adopt or pass such legally effective ordinances and/or 

laws as will permanently barricade and/or relocate certain intersecting streets as required by the 

State and to permanently deny or limit access at certain locations as required by the State along 

said improvements, all of which are more specifically stated as follows: 

N/A - This project does not permanently barricade or relocate of any intersecting streets 

Please refer to:  Project Notes       (Sheet 2B) 

Please refer to:  General Traffic Control Plan Notes (Sheet 2C) 

Please refer to:  ITS Plan Notes (Sheet 2D) 

Please refer to:  Sequence of construction and Traffic Control Plan (Sheets 8-16) 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL, that for 

and in consideration of the Alabama Department of Transportation in cooperation with the Federal 

Highway Administration, constructing said highway and routing traffic along the same through 

the City over said project, such City hereby agrees with the Alabama Department of Transportation 

and for the benefit of the Federal Highway Administration, that on the above mentioned project 

the City will not in the future permit encroachments upon the right of way; nor will it pass any 

ordinances or laws fixing a speed limit contrary to those limits provided for in Title 32, Chapter 5, 

Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, and other laws of Alabama; nor will it permit other than 

parallel parking in areas where parking is permitted; nor will it allow the placing of any 

informational, regulatory, or warning signs, signals, median crossover, curb and pavement or other 

markings, and traffic signals without written approval of the Alabama Department of 

Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration, of the location, form and character of 

such installations. The traffic control devices and signs installed during construction, and those 

installed after completion of this project shall be in accordance with the latest edition of the 

national Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and accepted standards adopted by the 

Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and by the Federal Highway 

Administration. The City further agrees that subsequent traffic control devices deemed necessary 

by it in keeping with applicable statutes, rules and regulations to promote the safe and efficient 

utilization of the highway under the authority of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, and 



Ordinance Number 2879 
Page 3 

 

all other applicable laws of Alabama, shall be subject to and must have the approval of the Alabama 

Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and of the Federal Highway Administration, 

prior to installation and the City further agrees that it will enforce traffic and control the same 

under the provisions of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, and other applicable laws of 

Alabama. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by this City Council: 

1. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on crossroads, service drives, or 

relocated roads that are not designated Federal or State highways that are in the 

jurisdiction of the City. 

2. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on any existing road which has been 

replaced by a new road; or, if the existing road is not used, the City has the option of 

vacating same. 

3. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on interchanges to the theoretical 

crossing of the denied access line. 

4. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on grade separations along the roadway 

to the end of the bridge, or the denied access fence, whichever the case. 

It is understood and agreed that no changes in this Resolution or Agreement shall in the 

future be made without having obtained the prior approval of the Federal Highway Administration. 

THIS RESOLUTION PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this the 23rd day of 

September, 23, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Rusty Weaver 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2879 
Page 4 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of an Ordinance lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 23rd day of 
September, 2019, and that such Ordinance is on file in the City Clerk's Office. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on this ___________ day of _______________________, 2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk SEAL 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879





Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2879



Ordinance Number 2872 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2872 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4851 & 4871 SICARD 
HOLLOW ROAD (SHAC) FOR INSTALLATION OF A 125’ 
STEALTH CELLULAR TOWER REPLACING A LIGHT POLE AT 
THE SOCCER FIELD  

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City of 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, lease holder interest for the City 

of Vestavia Hills, owner of the property located at 4851 & 4871 Sicard Hollow Road zoned 

Vestavia Hills Inst (institutional district); and 

 WHEREAS, New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC presented an application for 

Conditional Use approval for the purpose of erecting a 125’ stealth cellular tower to replace 

a light pole at the soccerfields of the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex (“SHAC”); and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the application for Conditional Use approval by New 

Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC detailing the location of the structure is marked as Exhibit A, 

attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2872 as though written fully 

therein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby granted for New Cingular Wireless PCS, 

LLC for the purpose of erecting a 125’ stealth cellular tower to replace a light 

pole at the soccerfields of the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex (“SHAC”); and 

2. Said conditional use approval shall be conditioned upon the required 

ingress/egress easement requested in said application shall be recorded in the 

Jefferson County Judge of Probate and a recorded copy of said agreement shall 

be presented to the City Clerk; and 

3. Should the new structure be destroyed or cease to exist on the property for a 

period of twelve (12) consecutive months, said use shall be considered null and 

void and said structure shall be immediately removed; and 



Ordinance Number 2872 
Page 2 

4. This Ordinance Number 2872 shall become effective immediately upon

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of October, 

2019. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2872 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 14th day of October, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 08, 2019

CASE:  P-0714-30

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use approval for a new wireless 
telecommunication facility

ADDRESS/LOCATION: SHAC

APPLICANT/OWNER: New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC; Baker Donelson

REPRESENTING AGENT: Andy, Rotenstreich, Mary Palmer

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The applicants have entered a tentative agreement with 
the City to construct a new cell tower at SHAC. The pad and pole would be located 
on the western side of the complex and would extend 130’ in the air. If approved by 
Council an easement would be recorded to provide access for maintenance. The 
request seems to meet the requirements for telecommunication facilities in Section 
7.9 of the Zoning Code, which the applicants will address in the meeting. The
property is currently zoned Vestavia Hills Inst-1.

LIBERTY PARK PUD: The request is consistent with the PUD Plan.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Conditional Use not final until easement 
has been recorded.

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Conditional Use approval for a new 
wireless telecommunication facility with the condition that the easement must be recorded before 
conditional use is valid. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as 
follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Article 7 USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS 

§7.9. Telecommunications Facilities 
7.9.1. Purpose. The purpose of these standards 

is to establish minimum considerations 
and criteria for the review of 
telecommunications facilities. It is the 
City of Vestavia Hill’s express intent that 
the construction of new towers be an 
option of last resort; to the greatest extent 
feasible, location of antennae on existing 
towers and other suitable structures 
should first be sought. These standards 
are designed to ensure the compatibility 
of towers with and avoid adverse impacts 
to nearby properties and discourage the 
proliferation of towers throughout the 
City.

7.9.2. Applicability. All telecommunication 
facilities are subject to these standards 
and to statutory review by the 
Commission and Council in accordance 
with Section 11-52-11 of the Code of 
Alabama, 1975, as amended. Anything 
contained in this Ordinance to the 
contrary notwithstanding, 
telecommunications facilities are 
conditional uses, which require approval 
by the Council.

7.9.3. Objectives. The proposed locations and 
design of all telecommunication facilities 
shall duly consider the following public 
health, safety and general welfare 
objectives:

1. Structural Safety. The proposed facility 
will comply with wind loading and other 
structural standards contained in 
applicable building and technical codes 
so as not to endanger the health and 
safety of residents, employees or 
travelers in the event of structural failure 
of the tower due to extreme weather 
conditions or other acts of God.

2. View Protection. The proposed facility 
will be designed to minimize adverse 
visual impacts to surrounding properties 

and the public right-of-way, given the 
topography of the proposed site and 
surrounding area. 

3. Land Use Compatibility. The proposed 
facility will be compatible with the 
surrounding land uses, given the 
character of the use and development of 
the location.

4. Design Harmony. The proposed facility 
will be designed in harmony with the 
natural setting and the surrounding 
development pattern as well as to the 
highest industry standards. 

5. Existing Communication Services. The 
proposed facility will comply with FCC 
and other applicable standards so as not 
to interfere with existing communication 
services in the area. 

6. Health Effects. The proposed tower will 
comply with all applicable federal, state, 
county and City health standards so as 
not to cause detrimental health effects to 
persons in the surrounding area. 

7.9.4. Development Criteria. The Building 
Official and City Engineer shall review 
all applications for telecommunications 
facilities for compliance with the 
applicable standards and criteria listed 
below. These criteria are considered the 
minimum necessary to protect the public 
health, safety and general welfare. The 
Commission may also impose higher 
standards if it deems them to be 
necessary to further the objectives of this 
Section.

1. Co-Location. No new tower shall be 
established if space is structurally, 
technically and economically available 
on an existing tower, which would serve 
the area that, the new tower would serve. 
Documentation that reasonable efforts 
have been made by the applicant to 
achieve co-location shall be submitted in 
accordance with §7.9.4.2 below. Towers 

p. 7-9 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Ordinance Number 2331 
Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 

shall be designed to maximize shared use 
to the greatest extent possible, given the 
structural and technical limitations of the 
type of tower proposed. In any event, co-
location shall be encouraged. If feasible, 
each tower shall, at a minimum, be 
designed for double its intended use for 
all transmitting and receiving antennae 
other than microwave dish antennae.

2. Removal of Obsolete Towers. Any tower 
that is no longer in use for its original 
communications purpose shall be 
removed at the owners’ expense. The 
owner shall provide the Building Official 
with a copy of the notice of the FCC of 
intent to cease operations, which shall be 
given ninety (90) days from the date of 
ceasing operations to remove the 
obsolete tower and accessory structures. 
In the case of multiple operators sharing 
use of single tower, this provision shall 
not become effective until all users cease 
operations. 

3. Setbacks.

a. Where permitted, the distance between 
the base of the tower, including guys, 
accessory facilities and property lines 
abutting residential districts, public 
parks and roads must equal twenty 
(20) percent of the tower height. 
Property lines adjacent to other uses 
(e.g. agricultural, industrial) shall 
require a setback equal to the rear yard 
setback established for the underlying 
zone.

b. Notwithstanding Item a above, when 
located within or adjacent to a 
residential district or dwelling, the 
minimum standard setback from all 
adjoining residential property 
boundaries shall be fifty (50) feet. 

c. Site plan review by the Commission 
may result in reduction of the standard 
setbacks in exceptional cases where a 
hardship would result due to unusual 

conditions on the site or other 
impracticalities. However, the 
Commission shall not reduce the 
setbacks to the detriment of affected 
residential properties.

4. Appearance. 

a. Towers shall be of a monopole type 
and shall maintain an exterior finish so 
as to reduce the visibility of the 
structure, unless other standards are 
required by the FAA.

b. The design of the tower shall be of a 
type that has the least visual impact on 
the surrounding area as determined by 
the Commission. 

c. The design of the tower compound 
shall, to the greatest extent possible, 
maximize use of building materials, 
colors, textures, screening and 
landscaping that effectively blend the 
tower facilities within the surrounding 
natural setting and built environment.

5. Lighting. Towers shall not be artificially 
lighted unless required by FAA or other 
authority for safety purposes. Where 
required, the Commission shall review 
the available lighting alternatives to 
assure that lighting proposed would 
cause the least disturbance to the 
surrounding views. “Dual lighting” (red 
at night/strobe during the day) shall be 
preferred unless restricted by the FAA. 
Security lighting may be permitted in 
accordance with Item e: Security 
Devices, below. 

6. Landscaping. 

a. A landscaped buffer shall effectively 
screen the view of the tower 
compound from adjacent public ways 
and residential properties.

b. The standard buffer shall consist of a 
minimum eight (8) feet wide 
landscaped strip outside the dark vinyl 
coated steel security fencing of the 

p. 7-10 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Article 7 USE-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS 

perimeter of the compound. The buffer 
strip shall be planted with an attractive 
combination of trees, shrubs, vines 
and/or ground covers that can achieve 
the full height of the fence at maturity 
and enhances the outward appearance 
of the security fence. For sites within 
1,000 feet of a residence, site review 
by the Commission may impose 
increased buffer standards to include a 
decay-resistant, solid wood fence, 
earth berms and brick or masonry 
walls in addition to the security 
fencing. All fencing and landscaping 
shall be maintained by the 
lessor/owner. 

c. In isolated non-residential areas, 
alternative landscaping methods may 
be accepted, such as the use of earth 
toned colored, vinyl-coated steel 
security fencing in combination with 
four feet of evergreen trees, shrubs, 
vines and/or other plantings.

d. In certain locations where the visual 
impact of the tower would be minimal, 
such as remote, agricultural or rural 
locations, or developed heavy 
industrial areas, the landscaping 
requirements may be reduced or 
waived by the Commission. 

e. Existing mature tree growth and 
natural landforms on the site shall be 
preserved to the maximum extent 
possible. In some cases, such as towers 
located on large, wooded lots, 
preservation of substantial natural 
growth around the property perimeter 
may be a sufficient buffer.

f. Cellular facilities utilizing 
underground vaults in lieu of above 
ground switching gear buildings shall 
be exempted from any buffer 
requirements. 

7. Security Devices. The facility shall be 
fully secured. A minimum eight (8) feet 

high, dark vinyl coated steel fence shall 
be installed around the entire perimeter 
of the compound (measured to the top of 
the fence or barbed wired, if applicable). 
Security fencing shall require screening 
in accordance with landscaping 
requirements, as defined above. Other 
security measures shall include locks and 
alarms. Approved barbed or razor wire 
and lighting of the compound shall be 
permitted, if deemed necessary to fully 
secure the tower compound.

8. Access. Driveways and onsite parking 
shall be provided to assure the operator’s 
access to the facility for maintenance or 
emergency services.

7.9.5. Application. Any application submitted 
for approval shall submit the following 
items, in addition to any other required 
items, to show compliance with these 
review standards.

1. Statement of Impact on Health, Safety 
and Welfare. A brief written statement 
shall address conformance with the 
health, safety and welfare objectives of 
this guideline.

2. Site Plan. A scaled site plan shall show 
the location and dimensions of all 
improvements, including setbacks, 
drives, parking, fencing, landscaping, 
and other information necessary to 
determine compliance with the 
development criteria of these guidelines. 

3. Rendering. A rendering of the tower, 
accessory facilities and compound shall 
depict colors, materials and treatment. If 
lighting or other FAA requirements for 
tower color is proposed, evidence of such 
requirement shall be submitted.

4. Justification for a New Tower. The 
applicant shall document a proposal for a 
new tower that the planned equipment 
for a proposed tower cannot be 
accommodated on an existing tower 

p. 7-11 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Ordinance Number 2331 
Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 

within the proposed service area. The 
applicant shall submit a written affidavit 
showing what attempts have been made 
to share an existing tower or that no such 
tower exists. 

5. Certification of Shared Use Design. A 
qualified, registered engineer shall certify 
that the proposed tower’s structural 
design can accommodate a minimum of 
two (2) shared users, in accordance with 
§7.9.4 Development Criteria.

6. As Built Survey. A qualified, registered 
engineer shall certify that the proposed 
tower is to be constructed and installed in 
accordance with the submitted site plan 
including the installation of any required 
buffer yard. 

7. Total anticipated capacity of the 
structure, including the number and types 
of antennae that can be accommodated.

8. Mitigation measures for ice and other 
hazardous falling debris, including 
setbacks and de-icing equipment. 

7.9.6. Exceptions. Towers camouflaged to 
resemble woody trees or indigenous 
vegetation to blend in with the native 
landscape, and other types of 
concealment, shall be reviewed by the 
Design Review Board. Concealment 
techniques are design methods used to 
blend a wireless telecommunications 
facility, including any antennas thereon, 
unobtrusively into the existing 
surroundings so as to not have the 
appearance of a wireless 
telecommunications facility. Such 
structures shall be considered wireless 
telecommunications facilities and not 
spires, belfries, cupolas, or other 
appurtenances usually required to be 
placed above the roof level for purposes 
of applying height limitations. Due to 
their height, such structures must be 
designed with sensitivity to elements 

such as building bulk, massing and 
architectural treatment of both the 
wireless telecommunications facility and 
surrounding development. Concealed 
towers on developed property must be 
disguised to appear as either a part of the 
structure housing, a principal uses, or an 
accessory structure that is normally 
associated with the principal use 
occupying the property. Concealed 
towers developed on unimproved 
property must be disguised to blend in 
with existing vegetation. 

p. 7-12 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



 

 

AT&T Mobility, Inc. 
1876 Data Drive 
Hoover, AL 35244 
 

 

 
 
 
 
July 9, 2019 
 
 
 
Conrad Garrison 
City Planner 
1032 Montgomery Hwy 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
 
 
Reference: AT&T Mobility, LLC 
Site:   Liberty Park South (USID 194907) 
Site Location: Vestavia Hills Candidate near 4870 Sicard Hollow Rd, Vestavia Hills, AL 35242 
 
  
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
AT&T Mobility, LLC herein referred to as “AT&T” is currently enhancing our network architecture to 
meet the growing demands of wireless voice and data customers in many areas of Alabama and 
Northwest Florida. This is necessary to provide such features as mobile internet, enhanced voice 
telephony, audio and video streaming, connectivity to cloud-based storage services, IoT (Internet of 
Things) devices, and mobile apps at the quality of service expected by our subscribers. To most 
efficiently utilize all available wireless spectrum to serve event locations, we must increase the 
complexity of our wireless radio systems and improve traffic distribution in areas of high utilization. 
  
AT&T is currently requesting to construct a 130’ foot wireless transmission tower at the location 
referenced above. This new transceiver location is needed to improve indoor coverage to the many 
commercial locations and residential homes around the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex. The location 
of this site is critical to successfully cover the numerous new developments in this fast-growing area of 
Vestavia Hills Alabama and also provide the necessary capacity/data throughput to this busy area of 
our network. The requested antenna rad center of 120’ (130’ overall height) will allow for a significant 
amount of needed coverage expansion in the target area and also allow for future capacity expansion 
for the expected capacity growth. Some specific locations where the new Liberty Park South tower will 
enhance coverage include: the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex, the Liberty Park Soccer Complex, 
Liberty Park Elementary, the Lunker Lake area, as well as many homes, business, and new 
developments around the Liberty Parkway and Sicard Hollow Road intersection. 
 
In high-traffic locations such as Vestavia Hills Alabama new sites are being required to meet growing 
customer demands for bandwidth-sensitive applications because the distance covered by wireless 
transmissions directly affects the digital bandwidth delivered to the receiver. By building sites closer to 
our customers, we are able to supply those customers with the higher data-speeds and greater service 
value they demand. 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



 

 

The indoor coverage improvement expected from this site is illustrated in the included maps showing 
service levels before and after the site is commissioned. In this suburban environment, increased signal 
strength and denser site spacing is needed to increase in-building service and provide the needed 
capacity.  When the proposed site is commissioned, the area will improve substantially providing 
strong, reliable signal levels, improved capacity, and yield higher data speeds to many of the areas 
around the site as noted above. 
 
In this market existing structures are evaluated if adequately suited to the network in meeting the 
increasing demands of our customers and the value of the structure is sufficient for the considerable 
long-term investment being made. There are only two known existing structures within a 1 mile radius 
of the proposed AT&T location. The first is a 130’ Crown Castle flagpole located 0.12 miles to the 
southwest at the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex. This existing flagpole does not have adequate space 
for AT&T to install their antennas and previous proposed extensions of this tower resulted in a badly 
failing structural analysis. Lack of space on this tower caused it to not be an adequate option for 
AT&T. The next nearest known macro communication structure is a 130’ Verizon tower located 0.69 
miles away to the northeast. This tower is outside the search ring for the Liberty Park South site 
location and would not provide an adequate antenna rad center needed to provide in-building coverage 
to the locations around the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex and the homes near the Liberty Parkway 
and Sicard Hollow Road intersection. All other known existing communication structures in this area, 
other than the two mentioned above, are roughly 2.3 miles or more from the proposed location and are 
already existing AT&T cell sites. The lack of a suitable collocation candidate within the search area of 
the Liberty Park South site drives the need for construction of a new structure. 
 
The maps provided are derived from a tool called Atoll™ produced by Forsk®. These predictions use 
digital topography based on data from the USGS and ‘clutter models’ derived from satellite imagery 
detailing the topology of an area. These clutter models are categorically tested for typical incurred 
losses. These loss estimates are then further tuned with regional propagation studies to better calculate 
the signal level expectations of a given area and provide an accurate prediction of expected coverage 
 
Should you require any additional information, or if you should have any questions, please feel free to 
contact me at cv011n@att.com or 205-517-4154. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Christopher M. Vaughn 
Senior RAN Engineer 
AT&T Mobility, LLC 
 
Enclosure:  Existing and Proposed Propagation Maps, Existing Towers Within 1 mile map, AT&T 
Jefferson/Shelby Spectrum & Technology letter. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



TITLE SHEET &
PROJECT INFORMATION

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

D
R

IV
IN

G
 D

IR
E

C
TI

O
N

S

D
E

P
A

R
TM

E
N

T

LA
N

D
/T

O
W

E
R

 O
W

N
E

R

S
IT

E
 A

C
Q

U
. A

G
E

N
T

ZO
N

IN
G

/P
E

R
M

IT
IN

G
 A

G
E

N
T

A
&

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
R

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R

R
F 

M
A

N
A

G
E

R

N
A

M
E

/S
IG

N
A

TU
R

E
D

A
TE

C
A

R
R

IE
R

:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

:

LI
B

E
R

TY
 P

A
R

K
 S

O
U

TH
S

IT
E

 N
A

M
E

:

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 1
25

' L
IG

H
T 

P
O

LE
 T

O
W

E
R

15
8 

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 C

E
N

TE
R

 D
R

IV
E

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

, A
L 

35
24

4
TE

L:
 2

05
-2

52
-6

98
5 

 F
A

X
: 2

05
-3

20
-1

50
4

12
77

82
84

A
T&

T 
S

IT
E

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

R
FD

S
 V

E
R

S
IO

N

v 
2.

00
 (D

A
TE

D
 1

2/
17

/2
01

8)
U

S
ID

 S
IT

E
 N

U
M

B
E

R
:

19
49

07

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

R
FD

S
 ID

24
60

27
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



LI
B

E
R

TY
 P

A
R

K
 S

O
U

TH
12

77
82

84
S

W
 1

/4
, S

E
C

. 8
, T

-1
8-

S
, R

-1
-W

JE
FF

E
R

S
O

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, A
LA

B
A

M
A

RAWLAND TOWER SURVEY

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

N
O

.
10

-1
07

1.
2

SMW Engineering Group, Inc.
158 Business Center Drive
Birmingham, Alabama 35244
Ph: 205-252-6985
www.smweng.com

FORESITE

P
A

R
E

N
T 

TR
A

C
T 

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
A

LE

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



LI
B

E
R

TY
 P

A
R

K
 S

O
U

TH
12

77
82

84
S

W
 1

/4
, S

E
C

. 8
, T

-1
8-

S
, R

-1
-W

JE
FF

E
R

S
O

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, A
LA

B
A

M
A

RAWLAND TOWER SURVEY

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

N
O

.
10

-1
07

1.
2

SMW Engineering Group, Inc.
158 Business Center Drive
Birmingham, Alabama 35244
Ph: 205-252-6985
www.smweng.com

FORESITE

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



GENERAL 
NOTES

FE
N

C
E

M

X G

C
O

N
TO

U
R

 L
IN

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

/R
O

W

LE
A

S
E

 A
R

E
A

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

D
IS

C
O

N
N

E
C

T 
S

W
IT

C
H

M
E

TE
R

C
IR

C
U

IT
 B

R
E

A
K

E
R

C
O

D
E

D
 N

O
TE

 N
U

M
B

E
R

C
H

E
M

IC
A

L 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 R

O
D

G
R

O
U

N
D

 R
O

D

G
R

O
U

N
D

 R
O

D
 W

/ I
N

S
P

E
C

TI
O

N
 S

LE
E

V
E

C
A

D
W

E
LD

 T
Y

P
E

 C
O

N
N

E
C

TI
O

N

C
O

M
P

R
E

S
S

IO
N

 T
Y

P
E

 C
O

N
N

E
C

TI
O

N

G
R

O
U

N
D

 W
IR

E

1.
TH

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 M

U
S

T 
V

E
R

IF
Y

 A
L 

D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

, C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

S
 B

E
FO

R
E

 S
TA

R
TI

N
G

 W
O

R
K

. A
LL

D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 C

A
LL

E
D

 T
O

 T
H

E
 A

TT
E

N
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 R
E

S
O

LV
E

D
 B

E
FO

R
E

P
R

O
C

E
E

D
IN

G
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 W

O
R

K
 . 

A
LL

 W
O

R
K

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 P
E

R
FO

R
M

E
D

 IN
 A

 W
O

R
K

M
A

N
LI

K
E

 M
A

N
N

E
R

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

A
C

C
E

P
TE

D
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
S

 P
R

A
C

TI
C

E
S

.

2.
IT

 IS
 T

H
E

 IN
TE

N
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E

S
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 T

O
 S

H
O

W
 C

O
M

P
LE

TE
D

 IN
S

TA
LL

A
TI

O
N

. T
H

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 F
O

R
 A

LL
 T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 B
R

A
C

IN
G

, S
H

O
R

IN
G

, T
IE

S
, F

O
R

M
 W

O
R

K
, E

TC
. I

N
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 A
LL

N
A

TI
O

N
A

L,
 S

TA
TE

, A
N

D
 L

O
C

A
L 

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

S
, T

O
 S

A
FE

LY
 E

X
E

C
U

TE
 A

LL
 W

O
R

K
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

LE
 F

O
R

 S
A

M
E

.
A

LL
 W

O
R

K
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 L

O
C

A
L 

O
R

D
E

R
S

,

3.
TH

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 S

H
A

LL
 U

S
E

 A
D

E
Q

U
A

TE
 N

U
M

B
E

R
 O

F 
S

K
IL

LE
D

  W
O

R
K

M
E

N
 W

H
O

 A
R

E
 T

H
O

R
O

U
G

H
LY

 T
R

A
IN

E
D

 A
N

D
E

X
P

E
R

IE
N

C
E

D
 IN

 T
H

E
 N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y

 C
R

A
FT

S
 A

N
D

 W
H

O
 A

R
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
TE

LY
 F

A
M

IL
IA

R
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 S

P
E

C
IF

IE
D

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
TS

 A
N

D
 M

E
TH

O
D

 N
E

E
D

E
D

 F
O

R
 P

R
O

P
E

R
 P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 O

F 
TH

E
 W

O
R

K
.

4.
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 A

G
R

E
E

S
 T

H
A

T 
IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 G

E
N

E
R

A
LL

Y
 A

C
C

E
P

TE
D

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

P
R

A
C

TI
C

E
S

, C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 W
IL

L 
B

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 T
O

 A
S

S
U

M
E

 S
O

LE
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

LE
TE

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
FO

R
 J

O
B

 S
IT

E
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E
 C

O
U

R
S

E
 O

F 
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E
 P

R
O

JE
C

T,
 IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 T

H
E

 S
A

FE
TY

 O
F

A
LL

 P
E

R
S

O
N

S
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
. T

H
IS

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T 

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 M
A

D
E

 T
O

 A
P

P
LY

 C
O

N
TI

N
U

O
U

S
LY

 A
N

D
 N

O
T 

B
E

 L
IM

IT
E

D
TO

 N
O

R
M

A
L 

W
O

R
K

IN
G

 H
O

U
R

S
. C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 F

U
R

TH
E

R
 A

G
R

E
E

S
 T

O
 IN

D
E

M
N

IF
Y

 A
N

D
 H

O
LD

 D
E

S
IG

N
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 H
A

R
M

LE
S

S
 F

R
O

M
 A

N
Y

 A
N

D
 A

LL
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
, R

E
A

L 
O

R
 A

LL
E

G
E

D
, I

N
 C

O
N

N
E

C
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 O

F
W

O
R

K
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 P
R

O
JE

C
T.

5.
S

IT
E

 G
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 S
H

A
LL

 C
O

M
P

LY
 W

IT
H

 T
O

W
E

R
 O

W
N

E
R

 G
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S

, L
A

TE
S

T 
E

D
IT

IO
N

. W
H

E
N

 N
A

TI
O

N
A

L
A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

L 
G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 C

O
D

E
S

 A
R

E
 M

O
R

E
 S

TR
IN

G
E

N
T 

TH
E

Y
 S

H
A

LL
 G

O
V

E
R

N
. G

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
LE

TE
D

B
E

FO
R

E
 E

R
E

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E

 T
O

W
E

R

6.
A

LL
 W

O
R

K
 S

H
A

LL
 C

O
M

P
LY

 W
IT

H
 O

S
H

A
 A

N
D

 S
TA

TE
 S

A
FE

TY
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
. P

R
O

C
E

D
U

R
E

S
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 O

F
E

X
C

A
V

A
TI

O
N

S
, E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 U
TI

LI
TI

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 E
S

TA
B

LI
S

H
E

D
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 F

O
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

IN
S

TA
LL

A
TI

O
N

. I
F 

TE
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 L
IG

H
TI

N
G

 A
N

D
 M

A
R

K
IN

G
 IS

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L 
A

V
IA

TI
O

N
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N
(F

A
A

), 
IT

 IS
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

'S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 T
O

 M
A

IN
TA

IN
 T

H
E

 N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y
 L

IG
H

TS
 A

N
D

 N
O

TI
FY

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
A

U
TH

O
R

IT
IE

S
 IN

 T
H

E
 E

V
E

N
T 

O
F 

A
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
.

7.
A

LL
 W

O
R

K
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 A

C
C

O
M

P
LI

S
H

E
D

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 A
LL

 L
O

C
A

L,
 S

TA
TE

, A
N

D
 F

E
D

E
R

A
L 

C
O

D
E

S
 A

N
D

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

S
. T

H
E

 M
O

S
T 

S
TR

IN
G

E
N

T 
C

O
D

E
 W

IL
L 

A
P

P
LY

 IN
 T

H
E

 C
A

S
E

 O
F 

D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 O

R
 D

IF
FE

R
E

N
C

E
S

 IN
 T

H
E

C
O

D
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
TS

.

8.
A

N
Y

 D
A

M
A

G
E

 T
O

 A
D

JA
C

E
N

T 
P

R
O

P
E

R
TI

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 C
O

R
R

E
C

TE
D

 A
T 

TH
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

S
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

.

9.
TH

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 IS

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

LE
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
V

ID
IN

G
 A

M
P

LE
 N

O
TI

C
E

 T
O

 T
H

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 IN

S
P

E
C

TI
O

N
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

TO
S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

 T
H

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 IN
S

P
E

C
TI

O
N

S
. A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 O

F 
24

 H
O

U
R

S
 O

F 
N

O
TI

C
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 G
IV

E
N

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

IN
S

P
E

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

P
A

R
TM

E
N

TS
 H

A
V

E
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
TE

D
 T

H
A

T 
G

R
O

U
P

S
 O

F 
TW

O
 O

R
 T

H
R

E
E

 S
IT

E
S

 B
E

 S
C

H
E

D
U

LE
D

 A
T 

O
N

E
 T

IM
E

IF
 P

O
S

S
IB

LE
.

10
.

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
 W

IL
L 

C
O

N
FI

R
M

 F
A

A
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L 
O

F 
TO

W
E

R
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 B
Y

 IS
S

U
IN

G
 T

O
W

E
R

 R
E

LE
A

S
E

 F
O

R
M

.
N

O
 T

O
W

E
R

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TE

D
 U

N
TI

L 
TH

E
 T

O
W

E
R

 R
E

LE
A

S
E

 F
O

R
M

 IS
 IS

S
U

E
D

 T
O

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
.

11
.

TH
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
TE

 B
ID

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
 IN

C
LU

D
E

S
 T

H
E

S
E

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

LO
N

G
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

TI
O

N
S

 A
N

D
TO

W
E

R
   

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
. C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 IS

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

LE
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
IE

W
 O

F 
TO

TA
L 

B
ID

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 B

ID
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L.

12
.

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 S
H

A
LL

 V
E

R
IF

Y
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
LL

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 U
TI

LI
TI

E
S

 W
IT

H
IN

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 L
IM

IT
S

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

.

13
.

TH
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 IS
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 F
O

R
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

IN
G

 P
O

S
IT

IV
E

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 O

N
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
 A

T 
A

LL
 T

IM
E

S
. S

IL
T 

A
N

D
E

R
O

S
IO

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 D

O
W

N
S

TR
E

A
M

 S
ID

E
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

IT
E

 A
T 

A
LL

 T
IM

E
S

. A
N

Y
 D

A
M

A
G

E
 T

O
A

D
JA

C
E

N
T 

P
R

O
P

E
R

TI
E

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 C

O
R

R
E

C
TE

D
 A

T 
TH

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
S

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
.

14
.

C
LE

A
R

IN
G

 O
F 

TR
E

E
S

 A
N

D
 V

E
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
 O

N
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
 S

H
O

U
LD

 B
E

 H
E

LD
 T

O
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
. O

N
LY

 T
H

E
 T

R
E

E
S

 N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
. A

N
Y

 D
A

M
A

G
E

 T
O

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 O

U
TS

ID
E

 T
H

E
 L

E
A

S
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TI

E
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 C
O

R
R

E
C

TE
D

 A
T 

TH
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

'S
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

.

15
.

A
LL

 S
U

IT
A

B
LE

 B
O

R
R

O
W

 M
A

TE
R

IA
L 

FO
R

 B
A

C
K

 F
IL

L 
O

F 
TH

E
 S

IT
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 IN
C

LU
D

E
D

 IN
 T

H
E

 B
ID

. E
X

C
E

S
S

 T
O

P
S

O
IL

 A
N

D
U

N
S

U
IT

A
B

LE
 M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 D

IS
P

O
S

E
D

 O
F 

O
FF

 S
IT

E
 A

T 
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
S

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
Y

 G
O

V
E

R
N

IN
G

 A
G

E
N

C
IE

S
 P

R
IO

R
TO

 D
IS

P
O

S
A

L.

16
.

S
E

E
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 M

U
LC

H
IN

G
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

IT
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 A
C

C
O

M
P

LI
S

H
E

D
 A

S
 S

O
O

N
 A

S
 P

O
S

S
IB

LE
 A

FT
E

R
 C

O
M

P
LE

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E
S

IT
E

 D
E

V
E

LO
P

M
E

N
T.

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 IS

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

LE
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
V

ID
IN

G
 A

N
D

 M
A

IN
TA

IN
IN

G
 A

N
 A

D
E

Q
U

A
TE

 C
O

V
E

R
 O

F
V

E
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
 O

V
E

R
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
 F

O
R

 A
 O

N
E

 Y
E

A
R

 P
E

R
IO

D
.

17
.

FO
R

 IT
E

M
 T

H
A

T 
S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 O

W
N

E
R

 &
 IN

S
TA

LL
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

, S
E

E
 "O

W
N

E
R

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

D
M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
LI

S
T"

 IN
S

E
R

TE
D

 IN
 T

H
IS

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 P

A
C

K
A

G
E

.

18
.

O
B

TA
IN

 A
N

D
 P

A
Y

 F
O

R
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 P
E

R
M

IT
S

, L
IC

E
N

S
E

S
, F

E
E

S
 IN

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

S
, E

TC
.

19
.

R
E

C
O

R
D

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
: M

A
IN

TA
IN

 A
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F 
A

LL
 C

H
A

N
G

E
S

, S
U

B
S

TI
TU

TI
O

N
S

 B
E

TW
E

E
N

 W
O

R
K

 A
S

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
 A

N
D

IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

 R
E

C
O

R
D

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 O

N
 A

 C
LE

A
N

 S
E

T 
O

F 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 W

H
IC

H
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 T

U
R

N
E

D
 O

V
E

R
 T

O
 T

H
E

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
 U

P
O

N
 C

O
M

P
LE

TI
O

N
S

 O
F 

TH
E

 P
R

O
JE

C
T.

20
.

TH
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 S
H

A
LL

 V
IS

IT
 T

H
E

 S
IT

E
 B

E
FO

R
E

 B
ID

D
IN

G
 O

N
 T

H
E

 W
O

R
K

 C
O

N
TA

IN
E

D
 IN

 T
H

IS
 D

E
S

IG
N

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
TE

S
:

1.
A

LL
 C

U
T 

&
 F

IL
L 

S
LO

P
E

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 3

:1
 M

A
X

IM
U

M
 (U

N
LE

S
S

 N
O

TE
D

 O
N

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 S
H

E
E

T)

2.
A

LL
 E

X
C

A
V

A
TI

O
N

S
 O

N
 W

H
IC

H
 C

O
N

C
R

E
TE

 IS
 T

O
 B

E
 P

LA
C

E
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 S
U

B
S

TA
N

TI
A

LL
Y

 H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

O
N

U
N

D
IS

TU
R

B
E

D
 A

N
D

 U
N

FR
O

ZE
N

 S
O

IL
 A

N
D

 B
E

 F
R

E
E

 F
R

O
M

 L
O

O
S

E
 M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
A

N
D

 E
X

C
E

S
S

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 W
A

TE
R

.
D

E
W

A
TE

R
IN

G
 F

O
R

 E
X

C
E

S
S

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 W
A

TE
R

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 IF

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
.

3.
C

O
N

C
R

E
TE

 F
O

U
N

D
A

TI
O

N
S

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
B

E
 P

LA
C

E
D

 O
N

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

 M
A

TE
R

IA
L.

 IF
 S

O
U

N
D

 S
O

IL
 IS

 N
O

T 
R

E
A

C
H

E
D

 A
T

TH
E

 D
E

S
IG

N
A

TE
D

 E
X

C
A

V
A

TI
O

N
 D

E
P

TH
, T

H
E

 U
N

S
A

TI
S

FA
C

TO
R

Y
 S

O
IL

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 E
X

C
A

V
A

TE
D

 T
O

 IT
S

 F
U

LL
 D

E
P

TH
A

N
D

 E
IT

H
E

R
 B

E
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
D

 W
IT

H
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
LL

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

C
TE

D
 G

R
A

N
U

LA
R

 M
A

TE
R

IA
L 

O
R

 T
H

E
 E

X
C

A
V

A
TI

O
N

 B
E

FI
LL

E
D

  W
IT

H
 C

O
N

C
R

E
TE

 O
F 

TH
E

 S
A

M
E

 Q
U

A
LI

TY
 S

P
E

C
IF

IE
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 F
O

U
N

D
A

TI
O

N
.

4.
A

N
Y

 E
X

C
A

V
A

TI
O

N
 O

V
E

R
 T

H
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 D

E
P

TH
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 F

IL
LE

D
 W

IT
H

 E
IT

H
E

R
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
LL

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

C
TE

D
G

R
A

N
U

LA
R

 M
A

TE
R

IA
L 

O
F 

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

A
M

E
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 F

O
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

. C
R

U
S

H
E

D
S

TO
N

E
 M

A
Y

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

 T
O

 S
TA

B
IL

IZ
E

 T
H

E
 B

O
TT

O
M

 O
F 

TH
E

 E
X

C
A

V
A

TI
O

N
. S

TO
N

E
, I

F 
U

S
E

D
, S

H
A

LL
 N

O
T 

B
E

 U
S

E
D

A
S

 C
O

M
P

IL
IN

G
 C

O
N

C
R

E
TE

 T
H

IC
K

N
E

S
S

.

5.
A

FT
E

R
 C

O
M

P
LE

TI
O

N
 O

F 
TH

E
 F

O
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 B

E
LO

W
 G

R
A

D
E

, A
N

D
 B

E
FO

R
E

 B
A

C
K

FI
LL

IN
G

, A
LL

 E
X

C
A

V
A

TI
O

N
S

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 C
LE

A
N

 O
F 

U
N

S
U

IT
A

B
LE

 M
A

TE
R

IA
L 

S
U

C
H

 A
S

 V
E

G
E

TA
TI

O
N

, T
R

A
S

H
, D

E
B

R
IS

A
N

D
 S

O
 F

O
R

TH
.

6.
B

A
C

K
 F

IL
L 

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

:
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 C

O
N

S
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
E

A
R

TH
, L

O
A

M
Y

, S
A

N
D

Y
, C

LA
Y

 S
A

N
D

, G
R

A
V

E
L 

O
R

 S
O

FT
 S

H
E

LL
;

FR
E

E
 F

R
O

M
 C

LO
D

S
 O

R
 S

TO
N

E
S

 O
V

E
R

 2
1 2"

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

;
IN

 L
A

Y
E

R
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

P
A

C
TE

D

7.
S

IT
E

 F
IL

L 
M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
A

N
D

 F
O

U
N

D
A

TI
O

N
 B

A
C

K
 F

IL
L 

S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 P
LA

C
E

D
 IN

 L
A

Y
E

R
S

, M
A

X
IM

U
M

 6
" D

E
E

P
 B

E
FO

R
E

C
O

M
P

A
C

TI
O

N
. E

A
C

H
 L

A
Y

E
R

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 S
P

R
IN

K
LE

D
 IF

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

A
C

TE
D

 B
Y

 H
A

N
D

 O
P

E
R

A
TE

D
 O

R
M

A
C

H
IN

E
 T

A
M

P
E

R
S

 T
O

 9
5%

 O
F 

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 D
E

N
S

IT
Y

, A
T 

TH
E

 O
P

TI
M

U
M

 M
O

IS
TU

R
E

 C
O

N
TE

N
T 

+/
-2

%
 A

S
D

E
TE

R
M

IN
E

D
 B

Y
 A

TM
 D

E
S

IG
N

A
TI

O
N

 D
-6

98
, U

N
LE

S
S

 O
TH

E
R

W
IS

E
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
. S

U
C

H
 B

A
C

K
 F

IL
L 

S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
B

E
P

LA
C

E
D

 B
E

FO
R

E
 3

 D
A

Y
S

 A
FT

E
R

 P
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T 

O
F 

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
.

8.
TH

E
 F

O
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

 A
R

E
A

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 G
R

A
D

E
D

 T
O

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

 W
A

TE
R

 R
U

N
O

FF
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
V

E
N

T 
W

A
TE

R
 F

R
O

M
S

TA
N

D
IN

G
. T

H
E

 F
IN

A
L 

G
R

A
D

E
 S

H
A

LL
 S

LO
P

E
 A

W
A

Y
 IN

 A
LL

 D
IR

E
C

TI
O

N
S

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 F

O
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 S

H
A

LL
TH

E
N

 B
E

 C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 W

IT
H

 4
' D

E
E

P
 C

O
M

P
A

C
TE

D
 S

TO
N

E
 O

R
 G

R
A

V
E

L.

9.
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 S

H
A

LL
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
 A

LL
 E

R
O

S
IO

N
 A

N
D

 S
E

D
IM

E
N

TA
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 A
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 B

Y
LO

C
A

L 
C

IT
Y

, C
O

U
N

TY
 A

N
D

 S
TA

TE
 C

O
D

E
S

 A
N

D
 O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E
S

 T
O

 P
R

O
TE

C
T 

E
M

B
A

N
K

M
E

N
TS

 F
R

O
M

 S
O

IL
 L

O
S

S
 A

N
D

TO
 P

R
E

V
E

N
T 

A
C

C
U

M
U

LA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

S
O

IL
 A

N
D

 S
IL

T 
IN

 S
TR

E
A

M
S

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 P
A

TH
S

 L
E

A
V

IN
G

 T
H

E
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

R
E

A
. T

H
IS

 M
A

Y
 IN

C
LU

D
E

 S
U

C
H

 M
E

A
S

U
R

E
S

 A
S

 S
IL

T 
FE

N
C

E
S

, S
TR

A
W

 B
A

LE
 S

E
D

IM
E

N
T

B
A

R
R

IE
R

S
 A

N
D

 C
H

E
C

K
 D

A
M

S
.

10
.

FI
LL

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
TI

O
N

:
R

E
M

O
V

E
 A

LL
 V

E
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
, T

O
P

S
O

IL
, D

E
B

R
IS

, W
E

T 
A

N
D

 U
N

S
A

TI
S

FA
C

TO
R

Y
 S

O
IL

M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

,O
B

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
S

, A
N

D
 D

E
LE

TE
R

IO
U

S
 M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 F

R
O

M
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
P

LA
C

IN
G

 F
IL

LS
. P

LO
W

 S
TR

IP
 O

R
 B

R
E

A
K

 U
P

 S
LO

P
E

D
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
S

 S
TE

E
P

E
R

 T
H

A
T 

1 
V

E
R

TI
C

A
L 

TO
 4

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

S
O

 F
IL

L 
M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
W

IL
L 

B
O

N
D

 W
IT

H
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
. W

H
E

N
 S

U
B

G
R

A
D

E
 O

R
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
G

R
O

U
N

D
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
 T

O
 R

E
C

E
IV

E
 F

IL
L 

H
A

S
 A

 D
E

N
S

IT
Y

 L
E

S
S

 T
H

A
N

 T
H

A
T 

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 F

O
R

 F
IL

L,
 B

R
E

A
K

 U
P

G
R

O
U

N
D

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

 T
O

 D
E

P
TH

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
, P

U
LV

E
R

IZ
E

, M
O

IS
TU

R
E

-C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 O

R
 A

E
R

A
TE

 S
O

IL
 A

N
D

R
E

C
O

M
P

A
C

T 
TO

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 D

E
N

S
IT

Y
.

11
.

R
E

P
LA

C
E

 T
H

E
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 W

E
A

R
IN

G
 S

U
R

FA
C

E
 O

N
 A

R
E

A
S

 W
H

IC
H

 H
A

V
E

 B
E

E
N

 D
A

M
A

G
E

D
 O

R
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

 D
U

R
IN

G
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 O

P
E

R
A

TI
O

N
S

. S
U

R
FA

C
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

 T
O

 M
A

TC
H

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 A
D

JA
C

E
N

T 
S

U
R

FA
C

IN
G

 A
N

D
S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 O

F 
TH

E
 S

A
M

E
 T

H
IC

K
N

E
S

S
. N

E
W

 S
U

R
FA

C
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 F
R

E
E

 F
R

O
M

 C
O

R
R

U
G

A
TI

O
N

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

V
E

S
.

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
 M

A
Y

 B
E

 E
X

C
A

V
A

TE
D

 S
E

P
A

R
A

TE
LY

 A
N

D
 R

E
U

S
E

D
 IF

 IN
JU

R
IO

U
S

 A
M

O
U

N
TS

 O
F 

E
A

R
TH

,
O

R
G

A
N

IC
 M

A
TE

R
IA

L,
 O

F 
O

TH
E

R
 D

E
LE

TE
R

IO
U

S
 M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 A

R
E

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 R

E
U

S
E

. F
U

R
N

IS
H

 A
LL

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

R
E

S
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
 M

A
TE

R
IA

L 
A

S
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

. B
E

FO
R

E
 S

U
R

FA
C

IN
G

 IS
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
D

, S
U

B
G

R
A

D
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

G
R

A
D

E
D

 T
O

 C
O

N
FO

R
M

 T
O

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 S

U
B

G
R

A
D

E
 E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

S
, A

N
D

 L
O

O
S

E
 O

R
 D

IS
TU

R
B

E
D

 M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

 S
H

A
LL

B
E

 T
H

O
R

O
U

G
H

LY
 C

O
M

P
A

C
TE

D
. D

E
P

R
E

S
S

IO
N

S
 IN

 T
H

E
 S

U
B

G
R

A
D

E
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 F

IL
LE

D
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

A
C

TE
D

 W
IT

H
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 S

E
LE

C
TE

D
 M

A
TE

R
IA

L.
 S

U
R

FA
C

IN
G

 S
H

A
LL

 N
O

T 
B

E
 U

S
E

D
 F

O
R

 F
IL

LI
N

G
 D

E
P

R
E

S
S

IO
N

S
 IN

 T
H

E
S

U
B

G
R

A
D

E
.

12
.

P
R

O
TE

C
T 

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
 A

N
D

 S
U

B
G

R
A

D
E

 IN
 A

R
E

A
S

 W
H

E
R

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T 
LO

A
D

S
 W

IL
L 

O
P

E
R

A
TE

. U
S

E
P

LA
N

K
IN

G
 O

R
 O

TH
E

R
 S

U
IT

A
B

LE
 M

A
TE

R
IA

LS
 D

E
S

IG
N

E
D

 T
O

 S
P

R
E

A
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

LO
A

D
S

. R
E

P
A

IR
 D

A
M

A
G

E
 T

O
E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 G

R
A

V
E

L 
S

U
R

FA
C

IN
G

 O
R

 S
U

B
G

R
A

D
E

 W
H

E
R

E
 S

U
C

H
 D

A
M

A
G

E
 IS

 D
U

E
 T

O
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

'S
O

P
E

R
A

TI
O

N
S

. D
A

M
A

G
E

D
 G

R
A

V
E

L 
S

U
R

FA
C

IN
G

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 R
E

S
TO

R
E

D
 T

O
 M

A
TC

H
 T

H
E

 A
D

JA
C

E
N

T 
U

N
D

A
M

A
G

E
D

G
R

A
V

E
L 

S
U

R
FA

C
IN

G
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

 O
F 

TH
E

 S
A

M
E

 T
H

IC
K

N
E

S
S

.

13
.

D
A

M
A

G
E

 T
O

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E
S

 A
N

D
 U

TI
LI

TI
E

S
 R

E
S

U
LT

IN
G

 F
R

O
M

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

'S
 N

E
G

LI
G

E
N

C
E

 S
H

A
LL

 B
E

R
E

P
A

IR
E

D
 / 

R
E

P
LA

C
E

D
 T

O
 O

W
N

E
R

'S
 S

A
TI

S
FA

C
TI

O
N

 A
T 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

'S
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

.

14
.

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 S
H

A
LL

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TE

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

 W
IT

H
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
W

N
E

R
 S

O
 A

S
 T

O
 A

V
O

ID
IN

TE
R

R
U

P
TI

O
N

S
 T

O
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
W

N
E

R
'S

 O
P

E
R

A
TI

O
N

S
.

15
.

E
N

S
U

R
E

 P
O

S
IT

IV
E

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 D

U
R

IN
G

 A
N

D
 A

FT
E

R
 C

O
M

P
LE

TI
O

N
 O

F 
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
.

16
.

R
IP

R
A

P
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E
 C

LE
A

N
, H

A
R

D
, S

O
U

N
D

, D
U

R
A

B
LE

, U
N

IF
O

R
M

 IN
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

, A
N

D
 F

R
E

E
 O

F 
A

N
Y

 D
E

TR
IM

E
N

TA
L

Q
U

A
N

TI
TY

 O
F 

S
O

FT
, F

R
IA

B
LE

, T
H

IN
, E

LO
N

G
A

TE
D

 O
R

 L
A

M
IN

A
TE

D
 P

IE
C

E
S

, D
IS

IN
TE

G
R

A
TE

D
 M

A
TE

R
IA

L,
 O

R
G

A
N

IC
.

E
X

C
A

V
A

TI
O

N
 &

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 N
O

TE
S

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

OVERALL
SITE PLAN

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1 C-
2

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
20

'

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

OVERALL
SITE PLAN

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1 C-
2.1

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
20

'

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x x x

x x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x x

x x

E

OVERALL
SITE PLAN

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1 C-
2.2

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
20

'

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

DETAILED
SITE PLAN

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

D
E

TA
IL

E
D

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1 C-
3

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
10

'

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



DETAILED
SITE PLAN

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

G
P

S
 D

E
TA

IL
2

C-
3.

1
SC

AL
E:

 N
.T

.S
.

S
H

E
LT

E
R

 P
LA

N
 

1
C-

3.
1

SC
AL

E:
 N

.T
.S

.

4'
x4

' S
TO

O
P

 D
E

TA
IL

3
C-

3.
1

SC
AL

E:
 N

OT
 T

O 
SC

AL
E

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

TOWER ELEVATION 
AND LIGHTING DETAIL

TO
W

E
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
1 C-
4

SC
AL

E:
 N

OT
 T

O 
SC

AL
E

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



AND NOTES

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 O
R

IE
N

TA
TI

O
N

 D
E

TA
IL

1
C-

4.0
1

SC
AL

E:
 N

OT
 T

O 
SC

AL
E

ANTENNA LAYOUT

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

SECTOR MOUNT DETAIL

DATEDESCRIPTION:

01/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

03/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
0

10/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



RF PLUMBING RISER

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

N
O

.  
 T

A
P

E
   

TA
G

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

S

A
LL

 R
F 

C
A

B
LE

 S
H

A
LL

  B
E

 M
A

R
K

E
D

 P
E

R
 C

A
B

LE
 M

A
R

K
IN

G
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
S

 T
A

B
LE

 B
E

LO
W

:
FI

B
E

R
/D

C
 C

A
B

LE
 M

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

S
 D

IA
G

R
A

M

P
O

W
E

R
P

LA
N

T

2 2 5

M
U

W

1

2 2 3 4 5

3 4

1

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

S
E

C
TO

R
 _

__
_

C
A

B
LE

 _
__

__
C

A
B

LE
 H

E
IG

H
T 

__

R
X

 _
__

__
TX

 _
__

__
__

__
__

_
__

__
__

_

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

AT&T ANTENNA
SPACING

REQUIREMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

RRUS AND SQUID
MOUNTING DETAILS

S
Q

U
ID

 M
O

U
N

TI
N

G
 D

E
TA

IL
 N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
A

LE

R
R

U
 3

2 
M

O
U

N
TI

N
G

 D
E

TA
IL

 N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

R
R

U
 3

2 
&

 R
R

U
 1

1 
M

O
U

N
TI

N
G

 D
E

TA
IL

 N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

R
R

H
4x

25
-W

C
S

-4
R

M
O

U
N

TI
N

G
 D

E
TA

IL
 N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
A

LE

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

GRADING, SEDIMENT &
EROSION CONTROL PLAN

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

S
dl

D
s2

D
s3 D
u

C
o

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1 C-
5

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
20

'

D
u

D
u

D
s2

D
s3

D
s2

D
s3

N

S
dl

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1
C-

5.0
1

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
20

'

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

GRADING, SEDIMENT
& EROSION CONTROL

PLAN

N

S
dl

D
s2

D
s3 D
u

C
o

D
s2

D
s3

S
dl

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x x

x x x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x x

x x

E

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1
C-

5.0
2

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
20

'

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

GRADING, SEDIMENT
& EROSION CONTROL

PLAN

N

S
dl

D
s2

D
s3 D
u

C
o

D
s2

D
s3

D
s2

D
s3

S
dl

S
dl

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



10
+0

0
10

+1
0

10
+2

0
10

+3
0

10
+4

0
10

+5
0

10
+6

0
10

+7
0

10
+8

0
10

+9
0

11
+0

0
11

+1
0

11
+2

0
11

+3
0

11
+4

0
11

+5
0

11
+6

0
11

+7
0

11
+8

0
11

+9
0

12
+0

0
12

+1
0

0.
16

%
0.

66
%

PVC STA.10+46.97
PVC ELEV.650.33

PVI STA.10+71.97
PVI ELEV.650.37

PVT STA.10+96.97
PVT ELEV.650.53

50
.0

0V
C

98
.5

8K
-V

al

0.
16

%
0.

66
%

64
0

65
0

66
0

64
0

65
0

66
0

7+
40

7+
50

7+
60

7+
70

7+
80

7+
90

8+
00

8+
10

8+
20

8+
30

8+
40

8+
50

8+
60

8+
70

8+
80

8+
90

9+
00

9+
10

9+
20

9+
30

9+
40

9+
50

9+
60

9+
70

9+
80

9+
90

10
+0

0
64

0

65
0

66
0

0.
67

%

PVC STA.8+28.50
PVC ELEV.650.32

PVI STA.8+53.50
PVI ELEV.650.49

PVT STA.8+78.50
PVT ELEV.650.42

50
.0

0V
C

53
.5

4K
-V

al
0.

67
%

-0
.2

6%

PVC STA.9+39.50
PVC ELEV.650.27

PVI STA.9+64.50
PVI ELEV.650.20

PVT STA.9+89.50
PVT ELEV.650.24

50
.0

0V
C

11
9.

58
K

-V
al

-0
.2

6%
0.

16
%

64
0

65
0

66
0

-0
.2

6%

ACCESS ROAD
PROFILE SHEET

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
O

A
D

 P
R

O
FI

LE
1

C-
5.

1
SC

AL
E:

 1
"=

20
'

CONTINUED BELOW

CONTINUED ABOVE

CONTINUED TO C-5.2

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



14
+7

0
14

+8
0

14
+9

0
15

+0
0

15
+1

0
15

+2
0

15
+3

0
15

+4
0

15
+5

0
15

+6
0

15
+7

0
15

+8
0

15
+9

0
16

+0
0

16
+1

0
16

+2
0

16
+3

0
16

+4
0

16
+5

0
16

+6
0

16
+7

0
16

+8
0

16
+9

064
0

65
0

66
0

-0
.1

6%

64
0

65
0

66
0

12
+1

0
12

+2
0

12
+3

0
12

+4
0

12
+5

0
12

+6
0

12
+7

0
12

+8
0

12
+9

0
13

+0
0

13
+1

0
13

+2
0

13
+3

0
13

+4
0

13
+5

0
13

+6
0

13
+7

0
13

+8
0

13
+9

0
14

+0
0

14
+1

0
14

+2
0

14
+3

0
14

+4
0

14
+5

0
14

+6
0

14
+7

0

-0
.8

1%

PVC STA.12+22.41
PVC ELEV.651.37

PVI STA.12+47.41
PVI ELEV.651.53

PVT STA.12+72.41
PVT ELEV.651.33

50
.0

0V
C

33
.8

2K
-V

al

0.
66

%
-0

.8
1%

PVC STA.13+20.37
PVC ELEV.650.94

PVI STA.13+45.37
PVI ELEV.650.74

PVT STA.13+70.37
PVT ELEV.650.70

50
.0

0V
C

76
.4

1K
-V

al

-0
.8

1%
-0

.1
6%

64
0

65
0

66
0

64
0

65
0

66
0

ACCESS ROAD
PROFILE SHEET

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
O

A
D

 P
R

O
FI

LE
1

C-
5.

2
SC

AL
E:

 1
"=

20
'

CONTINUED BELOW

CONTINUED ABOVECONTINUED FROM C-5.1

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E
:

1.
IN

S
P

E
C

T 
B

A
R

R
IE

R
S

 A
T 

TH
E

 E
N

D
 O

F 
E

A
C

H
 W

O
R

K
IN

G
 D

A
Y

, O
R

  A
FT

E
R

E
A

C
H

 R
A

IN
, A

N
D

 R
E

P
A

IR
 O

R
 C

LE
A

N
 A

S
 N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y

.
2.

R
E

M
O

V
E

 S
E

D
IM

E
N

T 
FR

O
M

 B
A

R
R

IE
R

 W
H

E
N

 T
W

O
-T

H
IR

D
S

 F
U

LL
.

3.
D

IS
P

O
S

E
 O

F 
S

E
D

IM
E

N
T 

S
O

 T
H

A
T 

IT
 W

IL
L 

N
O

T 
E

N
TE

R
 T

H
E

 B
A

R
R

IE
R

 A
G

A
IN

A
N

D
 S

TA
B

IL
IZ

E
 IT

 W
IT

H
 V

E
G

E
TA

TI
O

N
.

4.
R

E
P

LA
C

E
 F

IL
TE

R
 F

A
B

R
IC

 W
H

E
N

 D
E

TE
R

IO
R

A
TE

D
.

5.
D

E
S

IG
N

 L
IF

E
 O

F 
A

 S
Y

N
TH

E
TI

C
 S

IL
T 

FE
N

C
E

 IS
 A

P
P

R
O

X
IM

A
TE

LY
 6

M
O

N
TH

S
.

6.
M

A
IN

TA
IN

 U
N

TI
L 

TH
E

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

IS
 V

E
G

E
TA

TE
D

 O
R

 O
TH

E
R

W
IS

E
S

TA
B

IL
IZ

E
D

.
7.

R
E

M
O

V
E

 B
A

R
R

IE
R

S
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
U

M
U

LA
TE

D
 S

E
D

IM
E

N
T 

A
N

D
 S

TA
B

IL
IZ

E
   

 T
H

E
E

X
P

O
S

E
D

 A
R

E
A

 W
H

E
N

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
IS

 S
TA

B
IL

IZ
E

D
.

W
O

V
E

N
 W

IR
E

 F
E

N
C

E
B

E
H

IN
D

 F
A

B
R

IC

S
TE

E
L 

P
O

S
TS

4' 
M

AX
 O

.C
.

FL
O

W

2"
 W

ID
E

TR
E

N
C

H6"
DEEP

G
RO

UN
D

28"

25" MIN. 15" MIN.

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

I L
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

I N
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

GRADING, SEDIMENT
& EROSION CONTROL

DETAILS

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

D
IR

E
C

TI
O

N
 O

F 
FL

O
W

12
" A

LD
O

T 
C

LA
S

S
 I

R
IP

-R
A

P

M
IR

A
FI

 S
E

P
A

R
A

TI
O

N
 F

A
B

R
IC

FA
B

R
IC

 S
TA

P
LE

6'
 M

IN
IM

U
M

6"
 O

V
E

R
LA

P

6"

8"

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E
:

1.
P

E
R

IO
D

IC
A

LL
Y

 D
R

E
S

S
 W

IT
H

 1
.5

"-
3.

5"
 S

TO
N

E
.

2.
M

A
IN

TA
IN

 IN
 A

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 T

H
A

T 
W

IL
L 

P
R

E
V

E
N

T 
TR

A
C

K
IN

G
O

R
 F

LO
W

 O
F 

M
U

D
 O

N
TO

 P
U

B
LI

C
 R

IG
H

TS
-O

F-
W

A
Y

.

3.
IM

M
E

D
IA

TE
LY

 R
E

M
O

V
E

 M
U

D
 A

N
D

 D
E

B
R

IS
 T

R
A

C
K

E
D

 O
R

S
P

IL
LE

D
 O

N
TO

 R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
S

.

4.
50

' M
IN

IM
U

M
 IF

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 L
E

N
G

TH
 E

X
C

E
E

D
S

 5
0'

.
O

TH
E

R
W

IS
E

 U
S

E
 F

U
LL

 L
E

N
G

TH
 O

F 
A

C
C

E
S

S
 U

P
 T

O
 G

A
TE

D
C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
 E

N
TR

A
N

C
E

.

EX
IS

TI
NG

 P
AV

EM
EN

T

30
' M

IN
IM

UM
50

' M
IN

IU
M

UM

SE
E 

NO
TE

 4

6" MINIMUM

N
.S

.A
. R

-2
(1

.5
"-

3.
5"

)
C

O
A

R
S

E
 A

G
G

R
E

G
A

TE

G
E

O
TE

X
TI

LE
U

N
D

E
R

LI
N

E
R

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



GRADING, SEDIMENT &
EROSION CONTROL
VEGETATION SPECS

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



SITE
SIGNAGE

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

O
W

N
E

R
 C

O
N

TA
C

T 
S

IG
N

FC
C

 R
E

G
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N
 S

IG
N

D
A

N
G

E
R

 N
O

 T
R

E
S

P
A

S
S

IN
G

 S
IG

N
A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
E

D
 P

E
R

S
O

N
N

E
L 

S
IG

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



DETAILS

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

 IC
E

 B
R

ID
G

E
 D

E
TA

IL
 N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
A

LE

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



AT&T
SHELTER DETAILS

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



AT&T
SHELTER DETAILS

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



SHELTER
FOUNDATION DETAILS

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

S
H

E
LT

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

1 C-
11

SC
AL

E:
 N

OT
 T

O 
SC

AL
E

S
E

C
TI

O
N

 A
-A

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

   
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 B

-B
   

  N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

   
   

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 C
-C

   
   

   
 N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
A

LE

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 W
A

LL

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



ELECTRICAL SPECS &
ONE-LINE DIAGRAM

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



ELECTRICAL ONE
LINE

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

x

x

E

T

UTILITY
SITE PLAN

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

U
TI

LI
TY

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1 E-
2

SC
AL

E:
 1

" =
 1

0'

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



OVERALL UTILITY
SITE PLAN

U
TI

LI
TY

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1
E-

2.
1

SC
AL

E:
 N

.T
.S

. 

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

GROUNDING
SITE PLAN

G
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1 E-
3

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
10

'

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



SHELTER
GROUNDING PLAN

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

N

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



GROUNDING
DETAILS

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



UTILITY
FRAME DETAILS

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 P

O
S

T 
FO

O
TI

N
G

(3
00

0 
P

S
I M

IN
.)

FI
N

IS
H

E
D

 G
R

A
D

E

S
LO

P
E

 C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 A

W
A

Y
FR

O
M

 P
O

S
T 

(T
Y

P
)

3"
 D

IA
. (

3.
5"

 O
.D

.)
S

C
H

. 4
0 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T 
P

IP
E

1 
5 8"

 P
10

00
 U

N
IS

TR
U

T
A

TT
A

C
H

E
D

 W
IT

H
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

P
IP

E
 C

LA
M

P
S

 (T
Y

P
)

S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
 U

N
IS

TR
U

T 
E

N
D

C
A

P
S

 (T
Y

P
)

W
A

TE
R

TI
G

H
T 

E
N

D
C

A
P

(T
Y

P
)

C
O

N
D

U
IT

 T
O

C
A

R
R

IE
R

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

C
O

N
D

U
IT

TO
 M

A
IN

S
E

R
V

IC
E

48
"x

48
"x

12
" M

U
LT

I-T
E

N
A

N
T

TE
LC

O
 C

A
B

IN
E

T

1'
-0

" D
IA

.

4"3'-6"

2'-0" MIN.COORD. W/ UTILITY

6'-6" MIN.

FIELD VERIFY

7'
-0

" M
IN

.

K
W

H

K
W

H

K
W

H

K
W

H

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 P

O
S

T 
FO

O
TI

N
G

(3
00

0 
P

S
I M

IN
.)

FI
N

IS
H

E
D

 G
R

A
D

E

S
LO

P
E

 C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 A

W
A

Y
FR

O
M

 P
O

S
T 

(T
Y

P
)

3"
 D

IA
. (

3.
5"

 O
.D

.)
S

C
H

. 4
0 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T 
P

IP
E

1 
5 8"

 P
10

00
 U

N
IS

TR
U

T
A

TT
A

C
H

E
D

 W
IT

H
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

P
IP

E
 C

LA
M

P
S

 (T
Y

P
)

3"
 D

IA
. (

3.
5"

 O
.D

)
S

C
H

. 4
0 

S
U

P
P

O
R

T 
P

IP
E

W
A

TE
R

TI
G

H
T 

E
N

D
C

A
P

(T
Y

P
)

LA
B

E
L 

M
E

TE
R

 B
A

S
E

 P
E

R
 L

O
C

A
L

U
TI

LI
TY

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
TS

7'
-0

" M
IN

.

6'-6' MIN.

FIELD VERIFY

UTILITY

COORD. W/ 3'-0' MIN.

3'-6"

1'
-0

' D
IA

..

C
O

N
D

U
IT

 T
O

M
A

IN
S

E
R

V
IC

E

C
O

N
D

U
IT

 T
O

C
A

R
R

IE
R

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

C
O

N
D

U
IT

 T
O

C
A

R
R

IE
R

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

4 
G

A
N

G
 M

E
TE

R
 P

A
N

E
L 

IN
S

TA
LL

E
D

 B
Y

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

. C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TE

 W
/

U
TI

LI
TY

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
 F

O
R

M
A

N
U

FA
C

TU
R

E
R

 A
N

D
 M

O
D

E
L

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

06
/1

8/
20

19

#DATEDESCRIPTION:

201/15/19REVISED PER NEW TOWER HEIGHT

303/08/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

406/17/19ISSUED FOR PERMITTING

LIBERTY PARK SOUTH

S
M

W
  #

:
10

-1
07

1.
2

JO
B

  #
:

12
77

82
84

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

JD
S

D
R

A
W

N
:

B
LS

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
:

JD
S

110/08/18REVISED PER NEW RFDS v1.00 (07/06/18) 

C
A

#:
 A

L 
22

44
-E

A

A
A

A

M
L

B

JOHN
W

IL
LI

S

OLYAT

R

NE
G

IN
EE

R

EDS

I
N

E C L

506/18/19REVISED PER CLIENT COMMENTS

LANDSCAPING
SITE PLAN

N

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
 S

IT
E

 P
LA

N
1 LS
-1

SC
AL

E:
 1

"=
10

'

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

1 
- R

FD
S 

G
EN

ER
AL

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
R

FD
S 

N
A

M
E:

AL
L0

49
77

D
A

TE
:

11
/1

7/
20

17
R

F 
D

ES
IG

N
 E

N
G

:
Ey

ra
m

 K
un

aw
ot

or

IS
SU

E:
A

pp
ro

ve
d?

 (Y
/N

):
Ye

s
R

F 
D

ES
IG

N
 P

H
O

N
E:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
:

R
F 

M
A

N
A

G
ER

:
Th

om
as

 G
an

dy
R

F 
D

ES
IG

N
 E

M
A

IL
:

EK
31

58
@

AT
T.

C
O

M

IN
IT

IA
TI

VE
 /P

R
O

JE
C

T:

LT
E 

4C
-A

W
S3

 J
 (1

0 
M

H
z)

 B
an

d 
66

LT
E 

5C
-8

50
 - 

5 
M

H
z

LT
E 

6C
-7

00
 M

H
z 

U
PP

ER
 D

 (1
0 

M
H

z)
 B

an
d 

14

R
F 

PE
R

F 
EN

G
:

R
FD

S 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 T

YP
E:

20
19

 L
TE

 N
ex

t C
ar

rie
r

R
F 

PE
R

F 
PH

O
N

E:
R

FD
S 

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y:

LT
E 

6C

R
F 

PE
R

F 
EM

A
IL

:
ST

A
TE

/S
TA

TU
S:

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y/

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d

R
FD

S 
VE

R
SI

O
N

:
2.

00
R

FD
S 

ID
:

24
60

27
0

G
SM

 F
R

EQ
U

EN
C

Y:
C

re
at

ed
 B

y:
ek

31
58

U
pd

at
ed

 B
y:

ek
31

58

U
M

TS
 F

R
EQ

U
EN

C
Y:

D
at

e 
C

re
at

ed
:

7/
6/

20
18

 4
:2

5:
41

PM
D

at
e 

U
pd

at
ed

:
12

/1
7/

20
18

11
:5

5:
46

 A
M

LT
E 

FR
EQ

U
EN

C
Y:

5G
 F

R
EQ

U
EN

C
Y:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 1

:
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
14

7
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#1
:

LT
E 

N
ex

t C
ar

rie
r |

| L
TE

 6
C

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 2

:
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

3
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#2
:

LT
E 

N
ex

t C
ar

rie
r |

| L
TE

 5
C

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 3

:
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

2
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#3
:

LT
E 

N
ex

t C
ar

rie
r |

| L
TE

 4
C

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 4

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#4
:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 5

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#5
:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 6

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#6
:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 7

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#7
:

I-P
LA

N
 J

O
B

 #
 8

:
IP

LA
N

 P
R

D
 G

R
P 

|| 
SU

B
 G

R
P 

#8
:

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
- L

O
C

AT
IO

N
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

U
SI

D
:

19
49

07
FA

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
D

E:
12

77
82

84
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
 N

A
M

E:
LI

BE
R

TY
 P

AR
K 

SO
U

TH

R
EG

IO
N

:
SO

U
TH

EA
ST

M
A

R
K

ET
 C

LU
ST

ER
:

AL
AB

AM
A/

M
IS

SI
SS

IP
PI

/L
O

U
IS

IA
N

A
M

A
R

K
ET

:
BI

R
M

IN
G

H
AM

A
D

D
R

ES
S:

48
70

 S
IC

AR
D

 H
O

LL
O

W
 R

O
AD

C
IT

Y:
BI

R
M

IN
G

H
AM

ST
A

TE
:

AL

ZI
P 

C
O

D
E:

35
24

2
C

O
U

N
TY

:
SH

EL
BY

LO
N

G
 (D

EC
. D

EG
.):

-8
6.

66
72

28
0

LA
TI

TU
D

E 
(D

-M
-S

):
33

d 
28

m
37

.3
51

2s
LO

N
G

IT
U

D
E 

(D
-M

-S
):

-8
6d

 -4
0m

-2
.0

20
8s

LA
T 

(D
EC

. D
EG

.):
33

.4
77

04
20

D
IR

EC
TI

O
N

S,
 A

C
C

ES
S 

A
N

D
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 1
:

26
53

A0
H

Q
H

Q
PA

C
E 

JO
B

 #
 1

:
M

R
AL

M
02

91
89

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 2
:

26
53

A0
H

Q
H

P
PA

C
E 

JO
B

 #
 2

:
M

R
AL

M
02

91
94

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 3
:

26
53

A0
H

Q
H

N
PA

C
E 

JO
B

 #
 3

:
M

R
AL

M
02

91
93

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 4
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 4
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 5
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 5
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 6
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 6
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 7
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 7
:

O
R

A
C

LE
 P

TN
 #

 8
:

PA
C

E 
JO

B
 #

 8
:

B
O

R
D

ER
 C

EL
L 

W
IT

H
 C

O
N

TO
U

R
 C

O
O

R
D

:
SE

A
R

C
H

 R
IN

G
 N

A
M

E:
Li

be
rty

 P
ar

k 
So

ut
h

A
M

 S
TU

D
Y 

R
EQ

'D
 (Y

/N
):

N
o

SE
A

R
C

H
_R

IN
G

_I
D

:
LI

BE
R

TY
 P

AR
K 

SO
U

TH

FR
EQ

 C
O

O
R

D
:

B
TA

:
M

SA
 / 

R
SA

:

O
PS

 D
IS

TR
IC

T:
LA

C
(G

SM
):

O
PS

 Z
O

N
E:

LA
C

(U
M

TS
):

R
F 

D
IS

TR
IC

T:
B

SC
(G

SM
):

R
F 

ZO
N

E:
R

N
C

(U
M

TS
):

PA
R

EN
T 

N
A

M
E(

G
SM

):
M

M
E 

PO
O

L 
ID

(L
TE

):
FF

10

PA
R

EN
T 

N
A

M
E(

U
M

TS
):

Se
ct

io
n 

3 
- L

IC
EN

SE
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E/
FI

LI
N

G
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

C
G

SA
 - 

N
O

 F
IL

IN
G

 T
R

IG
G

ER
ED

 (Y
es

/N
o)

:
N

o
C

G
SA

 L
O

SS
:

PC
S 

R
ED

U
C

ED
 - 

U
PS

 Z
IP

:

C
G

SA
 - 

M
IN

O
R

 F
IL

IN
G

 N
EE

D
ED

 (Y
es

/N
o)

::
N

o
C

G
SA

 E
XT

 A
G

M
T 

N
EE

D
ED

:
PC

S 
PO

PS
 R

ED
U

C
ED

:

C
G

SA
 - 

M
A

JO
R

 F
IL

IN
G

 N
EE

D
ED

 (Y
es

/N
o)

:
Ye

s
C

G
SA

 S
C

O
R

EC
A

R
D

U
PD

A
TE

D
:

C
G

SA
 C

A
LL

 S
IG

N
S:

 

Se
ct

io
n 

4 
- T

O
W

ER
/R

EG
U

LA
TO

R
Y 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
ST

R
U

C
TU

R
E 

A
T&

T 
O

W
N

ED
?:

N
o

G
R

O
U

N
D

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

 (f
t):

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

E 
TY

PE
:

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

R
EG

U
LA

TO
R

Y?
:

N
o

H
EI

G
H

T 
O

VE
R

A
LL

 (f
t):

FC
C

 A
SR

 N
U

M
B

ER
:

SU
B

-L
EA

SE
 R

IG
H

TS
?:

N
o

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

E 
H

EI
G

H
T 

(ft
):

LI
G

H
TI

N
G

 T
YP

E:

 a

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 7
00

 M
H

z 
B

an
d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 8
50

 M
H

z 
B

an
d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 1
90

0 
M

H
z 

B
an

d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 A
W

S 
B

an
d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 W
C

S 
B

an
d:

M
A

R
K

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 F
ut

ur
e 

B
an

d:

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

5 
- E

-9
11

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 - 

ex
is

tin
g

PS
A

P 
N

A
M

E:
PS

A
P 

ID
:

E9
11

 P
H

A
SE

:
M

PC
 S

VC
 P

R
O

VI
D

ER
:

LM
U

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
:

SE
C

TO
R

 A
E-

91
1

 S
EC

TO
R

 B

 S
EC

TO
R

 C

 S
EC

TO
R

 D

 S
EC

TO
R

 E

 S
EC

TO
R

 F

 O
M

N
I

ES
R

N
:

D
A

TE
 L

IV
E 

PH
1:

D
A

TE
 L

IV
E 

PH
2:

Se
ct

io
n 

5 
- E

-9
11

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 - 

fin
al

PS
A

P 
 N

A
M

E:
PS

A
P 

ID
:

E9
11

 P
H

A
SE

:
M

PC
 S

VC
 P

R
O

VI
D

ER
:

LM
U

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
:

SE
C

TO
R

 A
E-

91
1

SE
C

TO
R

 B

SE
C

TO
R

 C

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

ES
R

N
:

D
A

TE
 L

IV
E 

PH
1:

D
A

TE
 L

IV
E 

PH
2:

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

6 
- R

BS
 G

EN
ER

AL
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 - 
ex

is
tin

g
LT

E 
1S

T 
R

B
S

LT
E 

2N
D

 R
B

S

R
B

S 
ID

:
59

69
33

C
TS

 C
O

M
M

O
N

 ID
:

AL
L0

49
77

C
EL

L 
ID

 / 
B

C
F:

AL
L0

49
77

B
TA

/T
ID

:

4-
9 

D
IG

IT
 S

IT
E 

ID
:

49
77

C
O

W
 O

R
 T

O
Y?

:
N

o

C
EL

L 
SI

TE
 T

YP
E:

SI
TE

 T
YP

E:

B
TS

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 ID

:

B
A

SE
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 T
YP

E:

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

N
A

M
E:

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

D
IS

A
ST

ER
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y:

Se
ct

io
n 

6 
- R

BS
 G

EN
ER

AL
 IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

 - 
fin

al
LT

E 
1S

T 
R

B
S

LT
E 

2N
D

 R
B

S

R
B

S 
ID

:
59

69
33

R
FD

S_
37

79
21

78

C
TS

 C
O

M
M

O
N

 ID
:

AL
L0

49
77

AL
L0

04
77

C
EL

L 
ID

 / 
B

C
F:

AL
L0

49
77

AL
L0

04
77

B
TA

/T
ID

:

4-
9 

D
IG

IT
 S

IT
E 

ID
:

49
77

04
77

C
O

W
 O

R
 T

O
Y?

:
N

o
N

o

C
EL

L 
SI

TE
 T

YP
E:

SE
C

TO
R

IZ
ED

SE
C

TO
R

IZ
ED

SI
TE

 T
YP

E:
ED

N
B-

LT
E

ED
N

B-
LT

E

B
TS

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 ID

:

B
A

SE
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 T
YP

E:
BA

SE
BA

SE

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

N
A

M
E:

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

D
IS

A
ST

ER
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y:
0

0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

7 
- R

BS
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 - 

ex
is

tin
g

LT
E 

1S
T 

R
B

S
LT

E 
2N

D
 R

B
S

R
A

C
:

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

VE
N

D
O

R
:

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

TY
PE

:

B
A

SE
B

A
N

D
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

A
TI

O
N

:

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

:

C
A

B
IN

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

:

M
A

R
K

ET
 S

TA
TE

 C
O

D
E:

A
G

PS
:

Ye
s

N
O

D
E 

B
 N

U
M

B
ER

:
49

77

Se
ct

io
n 

7 
- R

BS
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

 IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 - 

fin
al

LT
E 

1S
T 

R
B

S
LT

E 
2N

D
 R

B
S

R
A

C
:

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

VE
N

D
O

R
:

ER
IC

SS
O

N
ER

IC
SS

O
N

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

TY
PE

:
66

01
 IN

D
O

O
R

 M
U

66
01

 IN
D

O
O

R
 M

U

B
A

SE
B

A
N

D
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

A
TI

O
N

:
1x

66
01

 / 
1x

52
16

 / 
xx

xx
x

xx
xx

x 
/ 1

x6
63

0 
/ x

xx
xx

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

:

C
A

B
IN

ET
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

:

M
A

R
K

ET
 S

TA
TE

 C
O

D
E:

AL
AL

A
G

PS
:

Ye
s

Ye
s

N
O

D
E 

B
 N

U
M

B
ER

:
49

77
47

7

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

8 
- R

BS
/S

EC
TO

R
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 - 

ex
is

tin
g

LT
E 

1S
T 

R
B

S
LT

E 
2N

D
 R

B
S

C
TS

 C
om

m
on

 ID
AL

L0
49

77

So
ft 

Se
ct

or
 ID

s
AL

L0
49

77
_3

A_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
B_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
C

_1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
A_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
B_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
C

_1

Se
ct

io
n 

8 
- R

BS
/S

EC
TO

R
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 - 

fin
al

LT
E 

1S
T 

R
B

S
LT

E 
2N

D
 R

B
S

C
TS

 C
om

m
on

 ID
AL

L0
49

77
AL

L0
04

77

So
ft 

Se
ct

or
 ID

s
AL

L0
49

77
_2

A_
1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
A_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

B_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

D
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

E_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

F_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

A_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

AL
L0

04
77

_8
B_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

AL
L0

04
77

_9
A_

1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

B_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

AL
L0

04
77

_9
C

_1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
D

_1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
E_

1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
F_

1

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

9 
- S

O
FT

 S
EC

TO
R

 ID
 - 

ex
is

tin
g

LT
E

1S
T 

70
0

LT
E

1S
T 

85
0

LT
E

1S
T 

19
00

LT
E

1S
T 

A
W

S
LT

E
1S

T 
W

C
S

LT
E

2N
D

 7
00

U
SE

ID
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

H
ar

d 
Se

ct
or

)

SE
C

TO
R

 A
SO

FT
 S

EC
TO

R
 ID

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_9

A
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
A

_1

SE
C

TO
R

 B
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
B

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

B
_1

SE
C

TO
R

 C
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

C
_1

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

Se
ct

io
n 

9 
- S

O
FT

 S
EC

TO
R

 ID
 - 

fin
al

LT
E

1S
T 

70
0

LT
E

1S
T 

85
0

LT
E

1S
T 

19
00

LT
E

1S
T 

A
W

S
LT

E
1S

T 
W

C
S

LT
E

2N
D

 7
00

U
SE

ID
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

H
ar

d 
Se

ct
or

)

SE
C

TO
R

 A
SO

FT
 S

EC
TO

R
 ID

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

A
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
A

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

A
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
A

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

A
_2

_F

SE
C

TO
R

 B
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
B

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

B
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
B

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

B
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B

_2
_F

SE
C

TO
R

 C
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

SE
C

TO
R

 D
AL

L0
04

77
_9

D
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

D
_1

SE
C

TO
R

 E
AL

L0
04

77
_9

E
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
E

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

E
_1

SE
C

TO
R

 F
AL

L0
04

77
_9

F
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
F

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

F
_1

O
M

N
I

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

9 
- C

el
l N

um
be

r -
 e

xi
st

in
g

LT
E

1S
T 

70
0

LT
E

1S
T 

85
0

LT
E

1S
T 

19
00

LT
E

1S
T 

A
W

S
LT

E
1S

T 
W

C
S

LT
E

2N
D

 7
00

U
SE

ID
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

H
ar

d 
Se

ct
or

)

SE
C

TO
R

 A
C

EL
L 

N
U

M
B

ER
15

8
14

9

SE
C

TO
R

 B
16

9
15

0

SE
C

TO
R

 C
17

10
15

1

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

Se
ct

io
n 

9 
- C

el
l N

um
be

r -
 fi

na
l

LT
E

1S
T 

70
0

LT
E

1S
T 

85
0

LT
E

1S
T 

19
00

LT
E

1S
T 

A
W

S
LT

E
1S

T 
W

C
S

LT
E

2N
D

 7
00

U
SE

ID
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

H
ar

d 
Se

ct
or

)

SE
C

TO
R

 A
C

EL
L 

N
U

M
B

ER
15

1
8

22
14

9
19

1

SE
C

TO
R

 B
16

2
9

23
15

0
19

2

SE
C

TO
R

 C
17

3
10

24
15

1
19

3

SE
C

TO
R

 D
11

25
15

2

SE
C

TO
R

 E
12

26
15

3

SE
C

TO
R

 F
13

27
15

4

O
M

N
I

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

10
 - 

C
ID

/S
AC

 - 
ex

is
tin

g
LT

E
1S

T 
70

0
LT

E
1S

T 
85

0
LT

E
1S

T 
19

00
LT

E
1S

T 
A

W
S

LT
E

1S
T 

W
C

S
LT

E
2N

D
 7

00

SE
C

TO
R

 A
C

ID
/S

A
C

SE
C

TO
R

 B

SE
C

TO
R

 C

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

Se
ct

io
n 

10
 - 

C
ID

/S
AC

 - 
fin

al
LT

E
1S

T 
70

0
LT

E
1S

T 
85

0
LT

E
1S

T 
19

00
LT

E
1S

T 
A

W
S

LT
E

1S
T 

W
C

S
LT

E
2N

D
 7

00

SE
C

TO
R

 A
C

ID
/S

A
C

SE
C

TO
R

 B

SE
C

TO
R

 C

SE
C

TO
R

 D

SE
C

TO
R

 E

SE
C

TO
R

 F

O
M

N
I

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

12
 - 

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

T1
 C

O
U

N
TS

 e
xi

st
in

g
LT

E 
1S

T 
C

ab
in

et

# 
T1

s
.

LI
N

K
 P

R
O

FI
LE

R
F 

C
O

M
B

IN
IN

G

FI
B

ER
 o

r E
TH

ER
N

ET
?

Tx
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

Tx
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

R
A

X/
EC

U
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

R
A

X/
EC

U
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

B
B

U
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

B
B

U
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

R
R

U
 - 

lo
ca

tio
n

To
p

FI
B

ER
 J

U
M

PE
R

D
C

 C
A

B
LE

D
C

/F
ib

er
 D

em
. B

ox
2

B
un

dl
ed

 F
ib

er
 C

ab
le

2

B
un

dl
ed

 D
C

 C
ab

le
4

Se
ct

io
n 

14
 - 

N
EW

/P
R

O
PO

SE
D

 T
1 

C
O

U
N

TS
LT

E 
1S

T 
C

ab
in

et

# 
T1

s
.

LI
N

K
 P

R
O

FI
LE

R
F 

C
O

M
B

IN
IN

G

FI
B

ER
 o

r E
TH

ER
N

ET
?

Tx
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

Tx
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

R
A

X/
EC

U
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

R
A

X/
EC

U
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

B
B

U
 B

oa
rd

 M
od

el

B
B

U
 B

oa
rd

 Q
TY

R
R

U
 - 

lo
ca

tio
n

To
p

FI
B

ER
 J

U
M

PE
R

D
C

 C
A

B
LE

D
C

/F
ib

er
 D

em
. B

ox
2

B
un

dl
ed

 F
ib

er
 C

ab
le

2

B
un

dl
ed

 D
C

 C
ab

le
4

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

15
A 

- C
U

R
R

EN
T 

TO
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 A
 (O

R
 O

M
N

I)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-V

3
JA

H
H

-6
5C

-R
3B

-V
3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
C

om
m

sc
op

e
C

om
m

sc
op

e

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
95

.7
X1

3.
8X

8.
2

95
.7

X1
3.

8X
8.

2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
80

.2
80

.2

A
ZI

M
U

TH
40

40

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

1
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

1

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
2

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.A
.7

00
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

A_
1

LT
E 

70
0

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_7

22
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.4
3

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_9

A_
1

LT
E 

19
00

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_1

93
0M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.2
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
PO

R
T 

5
19

49
07

.A
.W

C
S.

4G
.tm

p1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

A_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
A_

1
LT

E 
W

C
S

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_2

35
5M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.4
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

15
B 

- C
U

R
R

EN
T 

TO
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 B
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-V

3
JA

H
H

-6
5C

-R
3B

-V
3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
C

om
m

sc
op

e
C

om
m

sc
op

e

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
95

.7
X1

3.
8X

8.
2

95
.7

X1
3.

8X
8.

2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
80

.2
80

.2

A
ZI

M
U

TH
22

0
22

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.B
.7

00
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B_
1

LT
E 

70
0

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_7

22
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.4
3

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_9

B_
1

LT
E 

19
00

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_1

93
0M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.2
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
PO

R
T 

5
19

49
07

.B
.W

C
S.

4G
.tm

p1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

B_
1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
B_

1
LT

E 
W

C
S

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_2

35
5M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.4
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

15
C

 - 
C

U
R

R
EN

T 
TO

W
ER

 C
O

N
FI

G
U

R
AT

IO
N

 - 
SE

C
TO

R
 C

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 is
LE

FT
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

fr
om

 B
A

C
K

 O
F 

A
N

TE
N

N
A

(u
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 3
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 4

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 6

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-V

3
JA

H
H

-6
5C

-R
3B

-V
3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
C

om
m

sc
op

e
C

om
m

sc
op

e

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
95

.7
X1

3.
8X

8.
2

95
.7

X1
3.

8X
8.

2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
80

.2
80

.2

A
ZI

M
U

TH
31

0
31

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.C
.7

00
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

LT
E 

70
0

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_7

22
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.4
3

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_9
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_9

C
_1

LT
E 

19
00

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_1

93
0M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.2
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
PO

R
T 

5
19

49
07

.C
.W

C
S.

4G
.tm

p1
AL

L0
49

77
_3

C
_1

AL
L0

49
77

_3
C

_1
LT

E 
W

C
S

JA
H

H
-6

5C
-R

3B
-

V3
_2

35
5M

H
z_

02
D

T
18

.4
4

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

16
A 

- P
LA

N
N

ED
/P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 A
 (O

R
 O

M
N

I)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

Ex
is

tin
g 

A
nt

en
na

?

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
40

40
40

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
2

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

4

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.A
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

A_
1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

A_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

D
_1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.A

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

A_
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
A_

1
LT

E 
85

0
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_8

51
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.5
2

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.A

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

A_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
D

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

D
_1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

A_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

D
_1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

16
B 

- P
LA

N
N

ED
/P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 B
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

Ex
is

tin
g 

A
nt

en
na

?

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
22

0
22

0
22

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.B
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B_
1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

B_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

E_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.B

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

B_
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
B_

1
LT

E 
85

0
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_8

51
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.5
2

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.B

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

B_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
E_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

E_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

B_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

E_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

16
C

 - 
PL

AN
N

ED
/P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 C
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

Ex
is

tin
g 

A
nt

en
na

?

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
31

0
31

0
31

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.C
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

C
_1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

F_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.C

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.8
50

.4
G

.tm
p

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

C
_1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
C

_1
LT

E 
85

0
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_8

51
M

H
z_

02
D

T
15

.5
2

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.C

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

C
_1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
F_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

F_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

C
_1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

F_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

17
A 

- F
IN

AL
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 A
 (O

R
 O

M
N

I)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
40

40
40

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

1
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

2
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

1
D

C
6-

48
-6

0-
18

-8
C

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

2
1

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
4

2

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

1
44

78
 B

14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.A
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

A_
1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

A_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

D
_1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
PO

R
T 

1
19

49
07

.A
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p1
19

49
07

.A
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

A_
1

LT
E 

85
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_8
51

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.5

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.A

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
A_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

A_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
D

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

D
_1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.A

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.A

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
A_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

A_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.D

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.D

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
D

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

D
_1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.A

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
A_

2_
F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

17
B 

- F
IN

AL
 T

O
W

ER
 C

O
N

FI
G

U
R

AT
IO

N
 - 

SE
C

TO
R

 B
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 is

LE
FT

 to
 R

IG
H

T 
fr

om
 B

A
C

K
 O

F 
A

N
TE

N
N

A
(u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

)
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 1

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 3

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 4
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 5

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 6
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
22

0
22

0
22

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

1
44

78
 B

14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.B
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

B_
1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

B_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

E_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
PO

R
T 

1
19

49
07

.B
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p1
19

49
07

.B
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

B_
1

LT
E 

85
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_8
51

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.5

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.B

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
B_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

B_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
E_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

E_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.B

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.B

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
B_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

B_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.E

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.E

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
E_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

E_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.B

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
B_

2_
F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Se
ct

io
n 

17
C

 - 
FI

N
AL

 T
O

W
ER

 C
O

N
FI

G
U

R
AT

IO
N

 - 
SE

C
TO

R
 C

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 is
LE

FT
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

fr
om

 B
A

C
K

 O
F 

A
N

TE
N

N
A

(u
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 3
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 4

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 6

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 7

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
A

K
E 

- M
O

D
EL

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 V
EN

D
O

R
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er
R

os
en

be
rg

er

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 S
IZ

E 
(H

 x
 W

 x
 D

)
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9
96

X1
3.

8X
7.

9

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 W
EI

G
H

T
70

.5
70

.5
70

.5

A
ZI

M
U

TH
31

0
31

0
31

0

M
A

G
N

ET
IC

 D
EC

LI
N

A
TI

O
N

R
A

D
IA

TI
O

N
 C

EN
TE

R
 (f

ee
t)

12
0

12
0

12
0

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 T
IP

 H
EI

G
H

T

M
EC

H
A

N
IC

A
L 

D
O

W
N

TI
LT

0
0

0

FE
ED

ER
 A

M
O

U
N

T

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 A

B
O

VE
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

VE
R

TI
C

A
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 B

EL
O

W
(T

IP
 to

 T
IP

)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 L
EF

T 
(C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E 

to
 C

EN
TE

R
LI

N
E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 C

LO
SE

ST
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 to

 R
IG

H
T 

(C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
to

 C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E)

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

TA
L 

SE
PA

R
A

TI
O

N
 fr

om
 A

N
O

TH
ER

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 (w
hi

ch
 a

nt
en

na
 #

 / 
# 

of
 in

ch
es

)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 M
ot

or
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SU
R

G
E 

A
R

R
ES

TO
R

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
IP

LE
XE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
U

PL
EX

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
nt

en
na

 R
ET

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

U
N

IT
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

D
C

 B
LO

C
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

TM
A

/L
N

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

IN
JE

C
TO

R
S 

FO
R

 T
M

A
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

PD
U

 F
O

R
 T

M
A

S 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
LT

ER
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

SQ
U

ID
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

FI
B

ER
 T

R
U

N
K

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)

D
C

 T
R

U
N

K
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
EP

EA
TE

R
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

R
R

H
 - 

70
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

R
R

U
S-

11
 E

 B
12

1
44

78
 B

14

R
R

H
 - 

85
0 

ba
nd

 (Q
TY

/M
O

D
EL

)
1

44
78

 B
5

R
R

H
 - 

19
00

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

15
 B

25

R
R

H
 - 

A
W

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
44

26
 B

66

R
R

H
 - 

W
C

S 
ba

nd
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

2
R

R
U

S-
32

 B
30

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
1 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 R

R
H

 #
2 

- a
ny

 b
an

d 
(Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 1
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 2
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 3
 (Q

TY
/M

O
D

EL
)

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

1

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

2

Lo
ca

l M
ar

ke
t N

ot
e 

3

a 

PO
R

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 F

IE
LD

S
PO

R
T 

N
U

M
B

ER
U

SE
ID

 (C
SS

ng
)

U
SE

ID
 (A

to
ll)

A
TO

LL
 T

XI
D

A
TO

LL
 C

EL
L 

ID
TX

/R
X

?
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y/
FR

EQ
U

EN
C

Y
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
A

TO
LL

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

G
A

IN
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L
A

ZI
M

U
TH

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

TI
LT

 R
R

H
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
(T

op
/B

ot
to

m
/

In
te

gr
at

ed
/N

o
ne

)

 F
EE

D
ER

S
TY

PE

 F
EE

D
ER

LE
N

G
TH

(fe
et

)

R
XA

IT
 K

IT
M

O
D

U
LE

?
TR

IP
LE

XE
R

or
 L

LC
 (Q

TY
)

TR
IP

LE
XE

R
or

 L
LC

(M
O

D
EL

)

SC
PA

/M
C

PA
M

O
D

U
LE

?

H
A

TC
H

PL
A

T
E 

PO
W

ER
(W

at
ts

)

ER
P

(W
at

ts
)

A
nt

en
na

R
ET

 N
am

e
C

A
B

LE
N

U
M

B
ER

C
A

B
LE

ID
(C

SS
N

G
)

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 1

PO
R

T 
1

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.1
19

49
07

.C
.7

00
.4

G
.1

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_7

C
_1

LT
E 

70
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_7
22

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.1

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

C
_1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

5.
8d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.1
90

0.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_9
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_9

F_
1

LT
E 

19
00

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_1
93

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+2

3.
7d

eg
18

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 2
PO

R
T 

1
19

49
07

.C
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p1
19

49
07

.C
.8

50
.4

G
.tm

p
1

AL
L0

04
77

_8
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_8

C
_1

LT
E 

85
0

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_8
51

M
H

z_
02

D
T

15
.5

2
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



PO
R

T 
2

19
49

07
.C

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
C

_1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

C
_1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
-2

1.
4d

eg
18

.6
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.A
W

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

49
77

_2
F_

1
AL

L0
49

77
_2

F_
1

LT
E 

AW
S

M
B-

A6
4O

9X
65

V-
01

_2
17

0M
H

z_
00

D
T_

AZ
+1

9.
9d

eg
17

.9
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

a

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 5

PO
R

T 
5

19
49

07
.C

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.C

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
C

_1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

C
_1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

-1
8.

8d
eg

17
.8

0
TO

P
FI

BE
R

0
N

O

PO
R

T 
6

19
49

07
.F

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

19
49

07
.F

.W
C

S.
4G

.tm
p1

AL
L0

04
77

_3
F_

1
AL

L0
04

77
_3

F_
1

LT
E 

W
C

S
M

B-
A6

4O
9X

65
V-

01
_2

35
0M

H
z_

00
D

T_
AZ

+1
8d

eg
18

.2
0

TO
P

FI
BE

R
0

N
O

PO
R

T 
7

19
49

07
.C

.7
00

.4
G

.tm
p2

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

AL
L0

49
77

_7
C

_2
_F

LT
E 

70
0

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



D
ia

gr
am

 - 
Se

ct
or

A
D

ia
gr

am
 F

ile
 N

am
e 

- L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
So

ut
h 

Sp
lit

.v
sd

At
ol

l S
ite

 N
am

e 
-

AL
L0

49
77

Lo
ca

tio
n 

N
am

e 
-

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

M
ar

ke
t -

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
M

ar
ke

t C
lu

st
er

 -
AL

AB
AM

A/
M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
/L

O
U

IS
IA

N
A

C
om

m
en

ts
:  

An
te

nn
a 

2

 
GS

M
D

C/
Fi

be
r

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

DC
 T

ru
nkAn

te
nn

a 
1

 
GS

M
D

C/
Fi

be
r

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

 
GS

M
D

C/
Fi

be
r

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

An
te

nn
a 

5

70
0 

Ba
nd

 1
4

R
RH

Po
w

er
 P

la
nt

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

 
GS

M
D

C/
Fi

be
r

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

70
0

R
RH

TX
1/

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
CTX

2/
RX

2
PC

S 
R

RH

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

PC
S 

R
RH

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

AW
S 

R
RHC

D
A

B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

AW
S 

R
RHC

D

85
0 

 R
RH

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
52

16

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
66

30
ID

L

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



D
ia

gr
am

 - 
Se

ct
or

B
D

ia
gr

am
 F

ile
 N

am
e 

- L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
So

ut
h 

Sp
lit

.v
sd

At
ol

l S
ite

 N
am

e 
-

AL
L0

49
77

Lo
ca

tio
n 

N
am

e 
-

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

M
ar

ke
t -

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
M

ar
ke

t C
lu

st
er

 -
AL

AB
AM

A/
M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
/L

O
U

IS
IA

N
A

C
om

m
en

ts
:  

An
te

nn
a 

2

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

DC
 T

ru
nkAn

te
nn

a 
1

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

An
te

nn
a 

5

70
0 

B
an

d 
14

R
R

H

Po
w

er
 P

la
nt

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

70
0

R
RH

TX
1/

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
CTX

2/
RX

2
P

C
S

 R
R

H

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

P
C

S
 R

R
H

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

A
W

S
 R

R
HC

D
A

B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

A
W

S
 R

R
HC

D

85
0 

 R
R

H

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
52

16

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
66

30
ID

L

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



D
ia

gr
am

 - 
Se

ct
or

C
D

ia
gr

am
 F

ile
 N

am
e 

- L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
So

ut
h 

Sp
lit

.v
sd

At
ol

l S
ite

 N
am

e 
-

AL
L0

49
77

Lo
ca

tio
n 

N
am

e 
-

LI
BE

R
TY

 P
AR

K 
SO

U
TH

M
ar

ke
t -

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
M

ar
ke

t C
lu

st
er

 -
AL

AB
AM

A/
M

IS
SI

SS
IP

PI
/L

O
U

IS
IA

N
A

C
om

m
en

ts
:  

An
te

nn
a 

2

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

DC
 T

ru
nkAn

te
nn

a 
1

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

An
te

nn
a 

5

70
0 

B
an

d 
14

R
R

H

Po
w

er
 P

la
nt

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

R
ET

70
0/

85
0

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

AW
S/

PC
S/

W
CS

 
GS

M
D

C
/F

ib
er

D
em

ar
ca

tio
n 

B
ox

Fib
er

 T
ru

nk

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

TX
1

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
C

  W
CS

 R
RH

TX
2

RX
2

TX
3

RX
3

TX
4

RX
4

70
0

R
RH

TX
1/

RX
1

CP
RI

/D
CTX

2/
RX

2
P

C
S

 R
R

H

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

P
C

S
 R

R
H

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

C
D

A
B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

A
W

S
 R

R
HC

D
A

B

1
C

PR
I/D

C

2

A
W

S
 R

R
HC

D

85
0 

 R
R

H

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
52

16

M
ai

n 
(B

as
eb

an
d)

U
ni

t
66

30
ID

L

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



N
O

TE
S

D
at

e 
Ti

m
e 

(E
as

te
rn

)
Ve

rs
io

n
AT

TU
ID

N
ot

e

11
/2

9/
20

18
 1

2:
34

:0
2 

PM
2.

00
ek

31
58

R
FD

S 
VE

R
SI

O
N

 in
cr

em
en

te
d.

11
/2

9/
20

18
 1

2:
34

:3
2 

PM
2.

00
ek

31
58

U
pd

at
ed

 lo
w

 b
an

d 
ra

di
o 

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
to

ta
l s

qu
id

 c
ou

nt

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



W
O

R
KF

LO
W

 S
U

M
M

AR
Y

D
at

e
FR

O
M

St
at

e 
/ S

ta
tu

s
FR

O
M

AT
TU

ID
TO

St
at

e 
/ S

ta
tu

s
TO

AT
TU

ID
O

pe
ra

tio
n

C
om

m
en

ts
PA

C
E

St
at

us

07
/0

6/
20

18
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
ek

31
58

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 fo
r A

pp
ro

va
l

JB
66

12
Pr

om
ot

e
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
14

7 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

07
/0

6/
20

18
 5

:5
4:

04
 P

M
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

3 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

07
/0

6/
20

18
 5

:5
4:

04
 P

M
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

2 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

07
/0

6/
20

18
 5

:5
4:

04
 P

M

11
/2

9/
20

18
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Su

bm
itt

ed
 fo

r A
pp

ro
va

l
JB

66
12

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

ek
31

58
Pu

ll 
Ba

ck

12
/1

7/
20

18
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
ek

31
58

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 fo
r A

pp
ro

va
l

JB
66

12
Pr

om
ot

e
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
14

7 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

12
/1

7/
20

18
 1

2:
02

:1
4 

PM
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

3 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

12
/1

7/
20

18
 1

2:
02

:1
4 

PM
SE

R
-R

BH
M

-1
8-

06
12

2 
FA

IL
U

R
E 

12
/1

7/
20

18
 1

2:
02

:1
4 

PM

03
/1

9/
20

19
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Su

bm
itt

ed
 fo

r A
pp

ro
va

l
JB

66
12

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d
EK

31
58

D
em

ot
e

N
ot

 fo
un

d 
in

 P
AC

E 
as

 M
ac

ro
 p

ro
j. 

Sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

 m
y 

W
F.

D
em

ot
ed

 b
ac

k 
to

 R
F

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Site Information

FA Code: 12778284 Street Address: 4870 SICARD HOLLOW ROAD 

USID: 194907 City: BIRMINGHAM

Market: BIRMINGHAM County: SHELBY

Latitude D-M-S: State: AL

Longitude D-M-S: Zip: 35242

Pace Job #: MRALM006034 Submitter: KENNETH ZENGOTITA

Construction Notice to Proceed (CNTP)

Guardian Filling(s) Approved Date - CNTP: 02/28/2019

From Guardian(optional):    Unique Structure ID : 276490 
Latitude : 33-28-37.3 
Longitude : 86-40-02.1 
ASR : 
County : Jefferson 
State : ALABAMA 
Site Name : LIBERTY PARK SOUTH 
Job Id : 1196396 
Region : SOUTHEAST 
Structure Marking and Lighting :Not Required 
FAA Study Number : 
FAA Issue Date : 
Is Notice to FAA of Construction Status (7460-2 Part I)
Required? : 
FAA NOTAM Required within Days (Part I): 
Notification to Airport Manager within (Part I) : 
Is Notice to FAA of Construction Status (7460-2 Part II)

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Required?  : 
FAA NOTAM Required within Days (Part II) : 
Notification to Airport Manager within (Part II) : 
Required FAA Notification Completed on Time : 
Preconstruction Approved Height for the Structure : 125 
Approved Temporary Construction Height : 
Preconstruction Expiration Date : 08/28/2019 
FCC File No : 
Regulatory Group Comments : Please provide all heights within
3 business days of completion 
NEPA expires 12-27-2020

CNTP1 - CNTP Approval:         15.00               Normal   0               false   false   false      EN-US  
X-NONE   X-NONE                                                                                             This serves as your
Construction Notice to Proceed (Greensheet) for the referenced project. Please note approved Overall
Height (do not exceed), Approved Crane Height (if requested), and Preconstruction Expiration Date (if app
licable).

If Scope of Work changes at any time between now and the time of construction complete, please email
your Network Compliance Manager for further compliance review.

If this modification includes the removal of any top mounted equipment that will affect the overall height,
a tape drop with overall height and any required antenna heights must be provided once construction is com
plete.

Overall Height (AGL-ft):                                     125

Frequency Bands:                               PCS (1900 MHz),WCS (2.3 GHz),AWS (2.1 / 1.7 
GHz),Cellular (850 MHz),700 MHz

Height Verification Form Requirements:           All Heights

Additional Comments:

*  PROJECT      TYPE: NSB w/ WLL 1C & LTE 1C – 6C

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



CNTP Approved By:                                     kz9108/KENNETH ZENGOTITA Date:                               02/28/2019
CNTP Acknowledged By:               rr4866/ROBERT RODRIGUEZ Date:           02/28/2019

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



86
°4

3'
W

86
°4

2'
W

86
°4

1'
W

86
°4

0'
W

86
°3

9'
W

86
°3

8'
W

86
33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N 86

°4
3'

W
86

°4
2'

W
86

°4
1'

W
86

°4
0'

W
86

°3
9'

W
86

°3
8'

W
86

33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N
Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



86
°4

3'
W

86
°4

2'
W

86
°4

1'
W

86
°4

0'
W

86
°3

9'
W

86
°3

8'
W

86
33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N 86

°4
3'

W
86

°4
2'

W
86

°4
1'

W
86

°4
0'

W
86

°3
9'

W
86

°3
8'

W
86

33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N
Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



86
°4

3'
W

86
°4

2'
W

86
°4

1'
W

86
°4

0'
W

86
°3

9'
W

86
°3

8'
W

86
33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N 86

°4
3'

W
86

°4
2'

W
86

°4
1'

W
86

°4
0'

W
86

°3
9'

W
86

°3
8'

W
86

33°27'N33°28'N33°29'N33°30'N
Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2872



Ordinance Number 2873 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2873 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS INST 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 (estate 

residential) to Vestavia Hills Inst (institutional district):  

2647 Gresham Drive 
Acreage Adjacent to the former Gresham School 

City of Vestavia Hills Board of Education, Owner(s) 

A parcel of land lying in the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 
28, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being 
more particularly described as follows: 

BEGIN at a 2" capped rebar found and locally accepted to be the Southwest 
corner of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 28, said 
point also being a point on the East right of way margin of Gresham Drive 
(50’ right of way); thence run in a Northerly direction along the West line 
of said 1/4-1/4 section and along said East right of way for a distance of 
365.04 feet to a 1/2" rebar found; thence turn right 92 degrees 05 minutes 
00 seconds, leaving the West line of said 1/4-1/4 section and said right of 
way, and run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 238.70 feet to an iron 
pin set; thence turn right 87 degrees 55 minutes 09 seconds and run in a 
southerly direction for a distance of 365.46 feet to an iron pin set on the 
South line of said 1/4-1/4 section; thence run in a Westerly direction along 
said South line for a distance of 238.70 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
Containing 2.00 acres, more or less. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said zoning is conditioned upon the Vestavia 

Hills Board of Education ownership and should the Vestavia Hills Board of Education 

choose to sell the property, in such event, this Ordinance Number 2873 shall be rescinded 

in its entirety and the property rezoned to the original Jefferson County E-1 zoning 

classification. 



Ordinance Number 2873 
Page 2 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of October, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2873 is a true and correct 
copy of such 14th day of October, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2873 
Page 3 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 8, 2019

CASE: P-0819-37

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-1 to Vestavia Hills-INST

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2647 Gresham Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: The Board of Education of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a rezoning of a property on Gresham Drive from 
JC E-1 to VH-Institutional. The property was just recently purchased by the School 
Board, and is adjacent to the site of the new Dolly Ridge Elementary School. The 
property will be used for school parking. Property was annexed overnight by 
Ordinance 2854 on 6/10/19.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for institutional district. 

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-1 to Vestavia 
Hills-INST with the condition that the zoning revert to the compatible City zoning (Vestavia 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



2

Hills E-2) if the property is no longer owned by the Vestavia Hills Board of Education for the 
property located At 2647 Gresham Drive. Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a 
roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5163

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2873



Ordinance Number 2874 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2874 
 

AN AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2110 AND TO 
FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND THE 
ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS 
LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF ORDINANCE 2110 FOR REZONING 
OF THE PROPERTY TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-2 WITH 
REVISED RESTRICTIONS. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That Ordinance Number 2110 and the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so 

as to change the class of district zoning of the following described property from 

Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-2;  

Lot 1A, Resurvey of Lots 1 & 3, Topfield Subdivision¸ 42/72 
Clint Gentry, Owner(s) 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said rezoning shall be conditioned upon 

the following revised conditions:  (1) that the development be 2 separate lots for the 

construction of 2 commercial buildings (2) that only one curb cut be allowed for the 

entire development for access to Blue Lake Drive, said access to be located opposite of 

Pine Tree Drive; (3) that the buffers be approved by the Vestavia Hills Design Review 

Board at a minimum of 10’ in width as required by the zoning code; (4) that said building 

shall be designed and constructed as a residential nature, said architectural style to be 

approved by the Vestavia Hills Design Review Board; (5) that 5’ sidewalks be 

constructed along the front of the development abutting Blue Lake Drive; (6) that the 

uses approved for the development be limited to B-1 uses as specified in the zoning code 

with the further restriction that no convenience stores, dry cleaning plants, and/or food 



Ordinance Number 2874 
Page 2 

 

service establishments be permitted; and (7) that a request be submitted by the applicant 

to the Chief of Police of the Vestavia Hills Police Department for a 4-way stop sign to be 

installed at the intersection of Pine Tree and Blue Lake Drive.  

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of October, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2874 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 14th day of October, 2019 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest 
Public Library, Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills New Merkel House this 
the ______ day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2874 
Page 3 

 

 
 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 08, 2019

CASE: P-0819-40

REQUESTED ACTION: Amendment to Ordinance 2110 to allow a two story 
development

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3100 Blue Lake Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: R. Clint Gentry

GENERAL DISCUSSION: When Ordinance 2110 was approved for this lot and its 
neighbor (3104 Blue Lake Dr.) on 9/19/05 with several conditions attached. The 
property has since changed ownership as well as the site plan. To meet the goals of 
the new development, the applicant is asking relief from conditions 2 & 5 or the 
rezoning ordinance. Condition 2 mandated a cross parking agreement between this lot 
and it’s neighbor. That agreement has never been signed and is not needed since each 
individual lot can accommodate its own parking. Condition 5 limited the height to 1.5 
stories, while the new development plan is seeking to build a 2-story structure. The 
building would have a pharmacy on the first floor with offices on the 2nd. The 
proposed site plan is attached.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
plan for retail/mixed use.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to amend Ordinance 2110, removing conditions 2 & 
5, for the property located At 3100 Blue Lake Dr. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2874



Ordinance Number 2875 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2875 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
5 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-5 (multi-family 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

2961 Green Valley Road 
Magnum Properties, Owner(s) 

 
Part of the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 22, Township 18, Range 2 West, 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commence at the NW corner of Section 22, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, thence East along the north line of said Section for 353.0 feet to the 
point of beginning, that point being also on the south right-of-way line of 
Green Valley Road; thence continue on last described course and along said 
right-of-way of 160.0 feet; thence 88 degrees 22 minutes right and in a 
southerly direction 329.59 feet to a point on the north line of Wallace 
Murphy’s property; thence 106 degrees 20 minutes 15 seconds right and 
parallel with the Birmingham Water Works Pipe Line right-of-way and 
along the north line of said Wallace Murphy’s property and in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 166.65 feet; thence 73 degrees 09 
minutes and 45 seconds right and in a northerly direction 287.27 feet to the 
point of beginning. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of October, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2875 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2875 is a true and correct 
copy of such 14th day of October, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 





1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 08, 2019

CASE: P-0819-38

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-5 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2961 Green Valley Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Magnum Properties, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 2961 Green Valley Rd. 
from R-5 to R-9. The applicant would demolish the four unit apartment building and 
construct 11 single family homes/lots. The lots would have a front setback of 8’, side 
setbacks of 5’ between dwellings, and a rear setback of 10’. All roads, sidewalks and 
improvements will be private and maintained by a homeowner’s association. The 
proposed site plan, renderings, and covenants are attached.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The plan states this property is for 
low density residential, however, it borders a medium residential single family 
product on both sides and would provide less density than an entitled multi-family 
development.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 



2

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Vestavia Hills R-5 to 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for the property located At 2961 Green Valley Rd.. Second was by Mr. 
Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.
















































































































	2019_0923CC_A
	Proclamation Leukemia  Lymphoma Awarness Month  2019
	Proclamation Trigeminal neuralgia
	Proclamation Fire Prevention Month 2019
	2019_0819_CC_work session
	2019_0904_CC_work session
	2019_0909CC_M
	Ordinance 2869
	Resolution 5188
	Resolution 5189
	Ordinance 2876
	Ordinance 2877
	Ordinance 2878
	Ordinance 2879
	Ordinance 2872
	Ordinance 2873
	Ordinance 2874
	Ordinance 2875



